
OSAWATOMIE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

August 9, 2012 
7:00 p.m., Memorial Hall 

 
 
 
1. Call to order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
4. Consent Agenda 

Consent Agenda items will be acted upon by one motion unless a Council member requests an item 
be removed for discussion and separate action 

A. Approve Minutes of July 12 Council Meetings and July 19 Special Meeting 
B. Approve August 9 Agenda 
C. Appropriation Ordinances 12-13 & 12-14   
 

5. Comments from the Public; Presentations  
Citizen participation will be limited to 5 minutes.  Please stand & be recognized by the Mayor. 

 
6. Public Hearing – Hearing on the Proposed 2013 Budget 

    
7. Unfinished Business 

A. Approve Invoice(s) for Pacific, 14th, Brown Streets Project – none  
 

8. New Business 
A. Appointments – none  
B. Proclamation – Black Ties to Osawatomie–Honoring 100-Years  
C. Proclamation – Honoring Ruth Wrench 
D. Presentation of the Osawatomie Chamber Annual Report 
E. 2012 Audit Agreement with Jarred, Gilmore & Phillips 
F. Adopt Resolution for 2012 GAAP Waiver   
G. Adoption of the Proposed 2013 Budget 
H. 2013 Budget Ordinance 
I. Street Signs 

 
 

9. Council Reports 
10. Mayor’s Report 
11. City Manager’s Report          
12. Executive Session – none  
13. Adjournment 
 

MEETING/WORK SESSION – August 23, 2012 
REGULAR MEETING – September 13, 2012 



OSAWATOMIE CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  July 12, 2012 
 

- 614 - 
 

Osawatomie, Kansas.  July 12, 2012.  The Council meeting was held in Memorial Hall.  Mayor 
Dudley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Council members present were Dickinson, Farley, Govea, 
Hunter, LaDuex, Maichel, and Moon.  Absent was Klein.  Also present were City Manager Cawby, City 
Attorney Wetzler, and City Clerk Elmquist.  Visitors were Doug Danaher, Matt Long, Joe File, Dan 
Macek, Robert Kerr, and Travis Perry. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA.  Approval of the minutes of June 14 and Jun 28 Council Meetings, 

approval of July 12 Agenda, and approval of Appropriation Ordinances 12-11 & 12-12.  Motion made by 
Hunter, seconded by LaDuex to approve the minutes of June 14 and June 28 Council Meetings, approve 
July 12 Agenda, and approve Appropriation Ordinance 12-12.  Motion made by Hunter, seconded by 
Maichel to approve Appropriation Ordinance 12-11.  Yeas:  All.   

 
Public Participation; Presentations:   

 
Public Hearing:  none   
 
Unfinished Business:   
 
APPROVE INVOICE(S) FOR PACIFIC, 14TH, BROWN STREETS PROJECT – none. 
 
LEVEE CERTIFICATION – PHASE-TWO REPORT PRESENTATION.  Matt Long and Doug 

Danaher, Wilson & Company, presented the findings of the Phase II Report for Levee Certification.  The 
report gave detailed technical analysis of the levee system and identified deficiencies in the levees that 
would be required to be fixed in order to be certified.  The total estimated construction cost was $1.31 
million and the opinion of probable cost was $1.81 million.  Motion made by Maichel, seconded by 
Hunter to accept the report.  Yeas:  All. 
 
  New Business:     
 

APPOINTMENTS.   
 
Library Advisory Board  Steve Clark 

 
Motion made by LaDuex, seconded by Moon to approve the appointment.  Yeas:  All      
   

PROPOSED ORDINANCE – MOBILE ICE CREAM STREET VENDOR LICENSING.  There 
was a request from a regional ice cream truck to operate in the city.  Ice cream trucks fall under the 
Peddler’s License which has a daily fee of $30.  The ordinance provides a special exemption for ice 
cream trucks.  A background check of the driver is authorized under the transient merchant ordinance. 
Motion made by Maichel, seconded by Govea to approve a special exemption for mobile ice cream 
trucks.  Yeas:  All.  Motion passed.  The Ordinance was assigned No. 3699. 

 
PROPOSED FEE RESOLUTION – ADDITION OF ICE CREAM TRUCK VENDOR FEE.  

Motion made by Hunter, seconded by LaDuex to approve the mobile ice cream vendor license annual fee 
of $50 per vehicle.  Yeas:  All.  Motion passed.  The Resolution was assigned No. 652. 
 
 
 
 RICE COMPLIANCE WORK.  There has been $300,000 set aside for the conversion project 
which has a compliance deadline of May 2013.  Only three firms were found to look at the project.  One 
bid estimate was from a reputable firm and within the budget.  The other bid was over $500,000 and the 
third firm declined to bid.  There are two options:  1)  approve the firm that submitted the bid below 
budget, citing the “special skill and expertise” provision of the purchasing policy and negotiate directly 
with the firm or  2) put the project out for bid which could take more than 6 weeks to come back with an 
approved bidder.  Motion made by LaDuex, seconded by Maichel to authorize the City Manager to 
negotiate with the current firm that has a proposal below budget and verify the scope of work, contractual 
obligations including warranty work, and references for previous work.  Yeas:  Dickinson, Farley, Govea, 
Hunter, LaDuex, and Maichel.  Nay:  Moon.  Motion passed.     [Note:  Because it was not known if the 



OSAWATOMIE CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  July 12, 2012 
 

- 615 - 
 

Council would decide to go out for official bid, information on the bid was not given.  Exline 
Inc. submitted an estimated bid of $239,166.] 
 
 CITY MANAGER’S PROPOSED 2012-2013 BUDGETS. The City Manager explained the 
proposed revised 2012 budget & recommended 2013 budget.  The 2013 budget presented would increase 
the total mill levy by 0.5 mill.  Due to the length of the meeting, the Council scheduled a special meeting 
to complete the review.     

 
SPEED CONTROL PROJECT REQUEST.  Public Safety Advisory Board Liaison Moon 

received a petition from the residents of Lockhart Lane for the installation of a speed hump (or bump).  
The street is narrow and they are concerned about the safety of the many children who walk to and from 
Trojan Elementary.  Motion made by Moon, seconded by Govea to authorize a speed hump project not to 
exceed $5,000 with the location to be determined.  Yeas:  Dickinson, Farley, Govea, Hunter, LaDuex, and 
Moon.  Nay:  Maichel.  Motion passed. 
 
 Council Reports:  none   
 
 Mayor’s Report:  none  
  

City Manager’s Report:   none 
 
Motion made by Hunter, seconded by LaDuex to adjourn.  Yeas:  All.     
 

                                                                             
                         
           Ann Elmquist, City Clerk 
 
 



OSAWATOMIE CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  July 19, 2012 
 

- 616 - 
 

Osawatomie, Kansas.  July 19, 2012.  The Special Council meeting was held in Memorial Hall.  
Mayor Dudley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.   The purpose of the meeting was to Review 2012-
2013 budgets.  Council members present were Dickinson, Farley, Govea, Hunter, LaDuex, Maichel, and 
Moon.  Absent was Klein.  Also present was City Manager Cawby.  Absent were City Attorney Wetzler 
and City Clerk Elmquist.  Visitors were Webster Hawkins and Travis Perry. 

 
REVIEW 2012-2013 BUDGETS.  Motion made by Moon, seconded by LaDuex to publish the 

public hearing notice for the 2013 budget at 58.234 mills.  Yeas:  All. 
 

Motion made by Hunter, seconded by Maichel to adjourn.  Yeas:  All.     
 
 
                         
           Ann Elmquist, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Osawatomie, Kansas.  July 26, 2012.  The meeting was cancelled based on a lack of items for the 

agenda.  
                         
           Ann Elmquist, City Clerk 
 
 



DATE WARRANTS ISSUED: Page No. 1

AN ORDINANCE MAKING APPROPRIATION FOR THE PAYMENT OF CERTAIN CLAIMS.
Be it ordained by the Governing Body of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas
     Section 1.  That in order to pay the claims hereinafter stated which have been properly audited and approved, there is
hereby appropriated out of the respective funds in the city treasury the sum required for each claim.

NATURE OF CLAIM OR SERVICE CLAIM AMOUNT
NUMBER

Payroll 92,173.43      
Payroll 99,741.05      
FICA 6,696.66        
FICA 7,275.59        
KPERS 13,496.20      
Doug Chisam tournament entry, meals, lodging 39881 749.50           
Crawford Sales Budweiser 39882 219.60           
Ryan Crowley patches, shoulder emblems 39883 187.95           
Suddenlink internet 39884 184.85           
Aerial FX balance on fireworks display 39885 898.00           
Donna & Viola's Shirts shirts for Jamboree, pageant sashes 39886 1,669.00        
Joe Booe reimb for flooded basement 39887 925.00           
Coventry Health health insurance 39888 30,000.00      
Void 39889 39895 -                 
Bob's Sales & Service recharge fire extinguishers 39896 179.50           
Bradley A/c & Heating thermostat, repairs 39897 352.51           
City of Osawatomie utilities 39898 13,422.03      
Craigs Sound & Lights DJ for pageant 39899 200.00           
Crawford Sales Budweiser 39900 148.80           
GCSAA membership 39901 340.00           
John Deere Financial sealing washer 39902 17.34             
Mark Marquez fireworks 39903 250.00           
Suddenlink internet 39904 59.95             
Vintage Park shuttle for Jamboree 39905 50.00             
Cody Applegarth baseball official 39906 50.00             
Sheldon Booe pre-T ball official 39907 15.00             
Spencer Booe pre-T ball official 39908 15.00             
Eric Draper baseball official 39909 40.00             
Vance Gorman baseball official 39910 290.00           
David Highfill baseball official 39911 100.00           
Brant Johnson baseball official 39912 255.00           
Jake Johnson baseball official 39913 280.00           
Travis Marsh baseball official 39914 190.00           
Allen Neal baseball official 39915 315.00           
Daniel Oglesby baseball official 39916 100.00           
Megan Roth softball official 39917 80.00             
Morgan Roth baseball official 39918 135.00           
Morgan Soucie baseball official 39919 90.00             
Mitch Talley baseball official 39920 50.00             
Kevin Wade baseball official 39921 200.00           

Record of Ordinances
ORDINANCE NO. 12-13

CLAIMANT

July 31, 2012



DATE WARRANTS ISSUED: Page No. 2

 
NATURE OF CLAIM OR SERVICE CLAIM AMOUNT

NUMBER
Jenna Wendt softball official 39922 205.00           
John Wendt softball official 39923 245.00           
Void Void 39924 -                 
Suddenlink internet 39925 74.24             
Anita Bomgardner contractual for Library 39926 480.00           
Kansas Dept of Revenue sales tax for Jamboree 39927 932.90           
Beachner Grain propane bottles filled, supplies 39928 856.48           
L & K Services. refuse, dumpsters emptied 39929 32,047.16      
City of Osawatomie petty cash reimbursement 1280 4,798.29        
Kansas Babe Ruth registration 39930 500.00           
AT&T RTU's 39931 221.15           
Blue Line Learning Group internet training courses 39932 280.00           
Brandy Communications EMCEE, remote works 39933 100.00           
Blue Valley Tractor reissued check 39510 39934 111.50           
Chief State Boiler Inspector boiler certification 39935 60.00             
Donna & Viola's Shirts shirts  39936 1,967.10        
Kansas Dept of Revenue wtr protection. Clean water 39937 2,072.18        
Kansas Dept of Revenue compensating use tax 39938 758.79           
Kansas Dept of Revenue sales tax  39939 9,675.32        
Kansas Gas Service power plant 39940 27.50             
Kansas Municipal Utilities training 39941 2,192.00        
Pitney Bowes postage machine rental 39942 189.50           
Ricoh Americas copier lease - office 39943 289.00           
Ricoh Americas copier lease - P.D. 39944 183.90           
Solomon Corporation regulator repair 39945 4,331.15        
Visa summer reading supplies, supplies 39946 2,202.54        
Austin Chisam baseball/softball academy 39947 100.00           
Drew Needham baseball/softball academy 39948 100.00           
Jenna Wendt baseball/softball academy 39949 100.00           
John Wendt baseball/softball academy 39950 100.00           
Crawford Sales Budweiser 39951 222.50           
Midwest Distributors Miller 39952 148.80           
KMEA - EMP1 electric, transmission 1281 67,030.02      
Void 39953 -                 
Midwest Distributors Miller 39954 111.60           
University of Kansas water & wastewater school 39955 275.00           
Brad Waggoner Pro Shop 39956 1,153.92        
Mysteree David Library Program 39957 100.00           
Crawford Sales reissued check 39953 39958 154.20           
Terry Ballou reimb lodging 13 year old baseball 39959 900.30           
Jason Brown reimb lodging 15 year old baseball 39960 274.32           
KABA legion registration 39961 275.00           
Kansas City Power & Light service 39962 2,860.64        
Kansas Gas Service services 39963 172.75           
Olathe Medical Services drug screen 39964 61.00             
Sprint service 39965 16.13             
Suddenlink internet 39966 59.95             

CLAIMANT

July 31, 2012

Record of Ordinances



DATE WARRANTS ISSUED: Page No. 3

 
NATURE OF CLAIM OR SERVICE CLAIM AMOUNT

NUMBER
Centurylink RTU's 39967 236.56           
Centurylink services 39968 2,457.80        
Centurylink long distance 39969 353.55           
Cintas fire extinguisher inspection 39970 316.25           
Dish service 39971 89.99             
Charles Elam lodging - 15 year old state 39972 274.32           
Tammy Filipin contractual for Library 39973 400.00           
Inside the Tape death investigation training course 39974 275.00           
John Deere Financial links 39975 21.94             
Chad Jones lodging - 11 year old tournament 39976 605.39           
Lybarger Oil, Inc. fuel 39977 9,902.22        
Suddenlink internet 39978 59.95             
Powel Observatory summer reading volunteers 39979 150.00           
Wal-Mart Community supplies 39980 471.60           
City of Osawatomie petty cash reimbursement 1282 4,530.80        

430,604.16    

 

GO 136,909.30
WT 21,525.76
EL 126,514.65
Em Ben 50,682.29
Refuse 31,396.21
Lib 2,572.02
RF 4,515.74
Ind 40.76
SP&R 21,126.25
St Imp 1,253.72
Sewer 9,890.58
GC 19,961.47
Trsm 4,215.41

430,604.16

Record of Ordinances
July 31, 2012

CLAIMANT



DATE WARRANTS ISSUED: Page No. 1

AN ORDINANCE MAKING APPROPRIATION FOR THE PAYMENT OF CERTAIN CLAIMS.
Be it ordained by the Governing Body of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas
     Section 1.  That in order to pay the claims hereinafter stated which have been properly audited and approved, there is
hereby appropriated out of the respective funds in the city treasury the sum required for each claim.

NATURE OF CLAIM OR SERVICE CLAIM AMOUNT
NUMBER

Ace Pipe Cleaning, Inc. manhole rehab 40091 8,455.00        
Agrium Advanced Tech. pesticide 40092 505.78           
Altec Parts extension arm 40093 1,787.00        
American Safety Utility Corp. rotation meter 40094 705.98           
Atco International over cote 40095 210.65           
Baker & Taylor books 40096 861.62           
BG Consultants, Inc. street improvements, WWTF 40097 5,430.50        
Bollings Bargain Bonanza gloves, dust mask 40098 12.45             
Bowes Automotive drop light 40099 42.25             
Bradley A/C & Heating checked AC - Library 40100 75.00             
Brenntag Mid-South, Inc. hypochlorite, ammonia 40101 5,343.00        
Brewer's Automotive Repair battery, tires, parts 40102 389.81           
C & G Merchants Supply, Inc. candy bars, chips 40103 506.24           
California Contractors Supplies, Inc. plastic ties 40104 429.96           
Champion Brands oil, tire sealant 40105 716.35           
Cole-Parmer tubing 40106 58.05             
Coleman Equipment, Inc. parts 40107 1,298.27        
Demco album sleeves 40108 111.15           
Design 4 Printing notice of violations 40109 85.10             
Eddy-Birchard Funeral Home replaced monument for Wobker 40110 412.00           
EMG energy consulting 40111 1,360.00        
Environmental Laboratories, Inc. analytical service 40112 434.00           
Evco Wholesale Food Corp. gatorade, hot dogs, sausage 40113 676.45           
Family Center parts 40114 707.82           
Feld Fire function test, compressor serviced 40115 2,135.00        
Richard M. Fisher, Jr. LLC court appointed attorney 40116 575.00           
Gerken Rental portable restrooms, misc. 40117 1,417.00        
Goodyear Wholesale tires 40118 428.68           
Grainger exhaust fan, hammer 40119 575.56           
Graybar electric line supplies 40120 1,751.16        
Hach water testing chemicals 40121 655.83           
Hanes Florist & Greenhouse flowers - Springer 40122 40.00             
HD Supply Waterworks water meter, supplies 40123 650.11           
Integrity Management Solutions, LLC evidence management database lic. 40124 50.00             
Jarred, Gilmore & Phillips, PA final billing on audit 40125 2,800.00        
JCI Industries, Inc. chains 40126 102.60           
Jerry's Sports Center ammo 40127 350.02           
John Deere Landscapes herbicide 40128 623.97           
KDHE analytical service 40129 597.00           
Kansas One Call Concepts locates 40130 43.40             
Kansas State Treasurer training funds 40131 572.00           
KC Golf Cart Company, LLC golf cart rental 40132 540.00           

Record of Ordinances
ORDINANCE NO. 12-14

CLAIMANT

August 9, 2012



DATE WARRANTS ISSUED: Page No. 2

 
NATURE OF CLAIM OR SERVICE CLAIM AMOUNT

NUMBER
KelCon Technologies, Inc. troubleshooting 40133 360.00           
Killough Construction, Inc. asphalt 40134 544.55           
Kincaid Ready Mix concrete 40135 1,221.63        
Kriz Davis Co. electric line supplies 40136 3,978.09        
Lang Chevrolet parts 40137 34.10             
Louisburg Ford labor, parts 40138 267.20           
Mallory Turf Service green aeration 40139 900.00           
Miami County Sheriff's Office prisoner care 40140 1,560.00        
Miami Lumber, Inc. painting supplies 40141 207.75           
Void 40142 -                 
Moon's IGA supplies 40143 727.19           
Navrat's AP checks, copy paper 40144 1,160.68        
ND&H court appointed attorney 40145 460.00           
NEKLS barcodes 40146 26.50             
Oil Patch Pump & Supply supplies 40147 71.48             
Olathe Winwater Works repair clamps, meter 40148 1,005.00        
Osawatomie Pet Clinic supplies for dog pound 40149 296.00           
Paving Maintenance Supply, Inc. parts, crack sealant 40150 5,730.76        
Pepsi Beverages Company Pepsi 40151 492.09           
Quality Tree Service remove tree stump 40152 100.00           
Quill office supplies 40153 284.92           
Read It Free fireworks ad 40154 75.00             
Rejis Commission web service 40155 30.00             
Ron's Small Engine, Inc. trimmer line, chains 40156 85.48             
Rural Water Dist. #1 service 40157 173.93           
Rural Water Dist. #3 ETI 40158 16.50             
Scott A. Michie Planning Services zoning 40159 495.00           
Tahirkeli & Farley, LLC court appointed attorney 40160 225.00           
Debbie Talley Memorial Hall janitorial 40161 375.00           
Thomas Outdoor Advertising, Inc. billboard rental 40162 540.00           
Tri County Ice ice machine, car wash tokens 40163 250.00           
UPS Store mail packages 40164 50.37             
UZ Engineered Products safety glasses, first-aid kit 40165 536.62           
Van Wall Equipment grind reels 40166 466.93           
Viking Industrial Supply trash bags, paper goods 40167 327.00           
Wade Quarries rock 40168 522.00           
Water Products, Inc. repair clamps 40169 176.60           
Wilson & Company levee assessment 40170 1,450.68        
Winkler, Domoney & Schultz Municipal Court Judge 40171 2,000.00        
WinPro Solutions paper goods 40172 177.80           
Winterscheid Auto Parts parts 40173 1,601.70        
YMCA City share wellness program 40174 22.50             
Zep Sales & Service trash bags, insect repellant 40175 441.28           

73,989.09      

August 9, 2012

Record of Ordinances

CLAIMANT



DATE WARRANTS ISSUED: Page No. 3

 
NATURE OF CLAIM OR SERVICE CLAIM AMOUNT

NUMBER

GO 30,161.12
WT 10,546.43
EL 11,743.74
Ind 16.50
SP&R 3,365.86
St Imp 6,897.98
Sewer 5,944.63
GC 4,772.83
Trsm 540.00

73,989.09

Record of Ordinances
January 31, 2012

CLAIMANT



 
  
 
 
 

 
 

WELCOME HOME BLACK TIES TO OSAWATOMIE 
WE HONOR YOUR 100-YEAR LEGACY 

 
WHEREAS, the family is the cornerstone of our society and we are nurtured by our families from birth until 

the ends of our lives; and 
 
WHEREAS, family reunions bring multiple generations together linking past, present, and future generations 

providing a time to share their heritage and their family traditions; and 
 
WHEREAS, families honor those who have passed on, and celebrate their continuing renewal through new 

marriages and the birth of new babies; and 
 
WHEREAS, at these special times families come together to renew and refresh their relationships and 

reconnect with long lost relatives.  In our mobile society, great distances often separate people from their loved 
ones; and 

 
WHEREAS, the phrase “Remember when we…” is sure to bring love and laughter in the years to come; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Black Ties to Osawatomie legacy began 100 years ago, gathering together every other second 

weekend in August in John Brown Park; and 
 
WHEREAS, Black Ties engages in this family-strengthening tradition making it the perfect opportunity to 

gather around with family and friends, feeling part of something greater than ourselves; and  
 
WHEREAS, these families are ever linked together because of their ties with Osawatomie and they welcome 

others that have ties to our community; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Philip A. Dudley, Mayor of Osawatomie, do hereby proclaim this the second 

weekend of August, 2012 as 
 
 BLACK TIES OF OSAWATOMIE – a Legacy of Reunions 
 

in Osawatomie, and urge all citizens to celebrate their families and reflect on their past and look forward to their 
future; and 

 
FURTHER, I urge everyone with ties to Osawatomie to join the Black Ties in celebrating their 100-year 

legacy. 
 
Proclaimed this 9th day of August, 2012. 

                                                                          
  

________________________________________ 
       Philip A. Dudley, Mayor 

 

Proclamation 
Issued by the Mayor of Osawatomie 

 



 
 
 
 
  

   
 

2012-08-09 SAM - Chamber Annual Report.docx   

Osawatomie City Hall 
439 Main Street  PO Box 37 

Osawatomie, KS  66064 
Phone:  (913)755-2146 

Fax:  (913)755-4164 

 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE OF MEETING: August 9, 2012 

AGENDA ITEM: Chamber of Commerce Annual Report 

PRESENTER:  Don Cawby, City Manager 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   As part of the agreement for the City’s funding of $30,000 to the Chamber 
of Commerce, the City asks for an annual report from the Chamber and also proof of 
memberships in excess of $10,000.   

The City provides funding to the Chamber of $10,000 three times per year, usually in April, July 
and September.  The July payment is a match of Chamber memberships up to $10,000.   

COUNCIL ACTION NEEDED:  No action is required. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Review and acknowledge receipt of the annual 
report. 



 
 
 
 

Osawatomie Chamber of 
Commerce 

Annual Report 
July 2012 

 
 

 
 

Current Board of Directors: 
 

 Donna Darner (Osawatomie State Hospital)- President 
Diana Neal (Osawatomie High school)- Vice President 

Pat Fagan (First Option Bank)- Treasurer 
 

Jim Adams (State Farm Insurance) 
Cami Akes (Landmark Bank) 
Teri Auten (Auten Pharmacy) 

Kim Bolen (MCMC) 
Spencer Eble (Spencer Nicoles) 
Steve Eichorn (Donna & Viola’s) 

Amanda Moon (Moon’s Hometown Market) 
Lori Needham (Hanes Florist) 
Joyce Schrader (Coach Light) 
Amiee Seck (Life Care Center) 

Hitomi Warren (Eyecare Associates) 
 
 

City Council Liaisons: 
 

Mark Govea 
Mike Moon 

 
 

 



 2 

Membership: 
 
We currently have 89 Members, which is up 9 from 2011.  Of that number, 9 (10%) are 
individuals while 80 (90%) are businesses.  53 (60%) of the businesses are local, with 27 (30%) 
serving our community from out of town. 
 
Osawatomie- 62 
Paola- 16 
Kansas City, MO- 1 
Kansas City, KS- 1 

Garnett- 1 
Gardner- 1 
Girard- 1 
Kearney- 1 

Louisburg- 2 
Osage City- 1 
Ottawa- 1 
Pittsburgh- 1 

 
We have picked up 17 new members this year. (A complete membership list is included on 
Page 10) 
 
Aflac Insurance, Sherry Goodwin 
Back Home Nursery 
CenturyLink 
Country Vintage Inn 
Elliott Insurance 
Friends of the Mentally Ill Foundation 
Gluten Free Group of Miami County 
Hall’s Tire & Auto 
HIS Coffee Shop 

KWJP Radio 
La Hacienda 
MiCo Television 
Middle Creek Winery 
North Point Skilled Nursing Center 
Penwell-Gabel Funeral Home 
Ragamuffins 
Wayne Harclerode 

 
The Chamber has collected $11,631.76 in dues so far this year.  Several members are on 
payment plans, so there is an additional $755.00 outstanding. 
 
 
Events: 

 
• The 2011 Spook Parade & Boo Bash- 
We collaborated with the YMCA and the OHS Dazzlers and expanded the event to include 10 
games, a costume contest, and food drive inside the City Auditorium, prior to the start of the 
parade.  A Fire Truck led the parade and 8 Groups participated in trunk or treat. We gave 
away 300 goodie bags filled with candy and trinkets, generously donated by local businesses.  
The weather cooperated and we had a great turnout. 
 
• Annual Dinner, October 2011 
We compiled a list of historical tidbits and played Osawatomie Trivia prior to the meal. Citizen 
of the Year nominations were held before the event and the winner, Wayne Harclerode, was 
announced that evening.  Osawatomie native and athlete, Lynn Dickey, spoke to the 100 
guests.  Moon’s catered the meal.  We did not raise ticket sales and spent $108 on this 
event. 
 
• The Christmas Festival, November 2011 
We worked closely with Osawatomie Tourism and the City to plan this event on the Saturday 
before Thanksgiving. The Chamber revitalized the sleigh and offered free sleigh rides 
throughout the day. An Arts & Crafts Fair, special discounts at local retailers, live 
entertainment, Mayor’s Chocolate Cake Contest, pictures with Santa, and prize drawings 
added to the festivities. 
 
 
 



 3 

• Legislative Breakfast, February 2012 
100 people attended.  The school district provided the meal.  Senator Pat Apple, and 
Representative Bill Feuerborn were all in attendance, along with city and county officials.  
Jene Vickrey had a conflict and was unable to attend.  The generosity of local business 
sponsors covered the expenses of this event. 
 
• President’s Day Cherry Pie Promotion, February 2012 
We ordered 40 pre-baked Cherry Pies from Moon’s and advertised “a free pie” to anyone 
shopping locally and spending at least $5 in a local Chamber Business that day.  They 
brought their receipt to the Chamber Office and took home a pie.  Total Expense $203, 
Rewarding and encouraging people to shop locally and support their community- Priceless. 
 
• 4th Annual Home and Business Expo, February 2012 
This event continues to grow every year. We had 38 booth holders in 2012.  We had a DJ for 
entertainment and announcements, and offered pictures with the Easter Bunny courtesy of 
Christle Macek. Photo proceeds went to the Rotary’s City lake Project.  KWJP’s, Nick Marchi 
did a live remote and interviewed participating businesses on air.  We gave away $15 in 
Chamber Bucks every 30 minutes for a total of $120, along with close to 200 goodie bags 
that patrons used to collect information from the participating businesses.  We also gave 
visitors reusable cups with the Chamber logo on them. We picked up 3 new members that 
day, based on the success of their booths at this event.  We collected 18 new contacts and e-
mails from the sign in sheet.  We broke even on this event, and still covered all expense from 
our cups. 
 
• Multi Chamber After Hours Networking Event, May 2012 
This event was planned through the cooperation of all four Miami County Chambers and 
Jayhawk Marina, to encourage networking within the county.  Close to 300 people attended 
and enjoyed free food and drinks, boat rides, a demonstration by the Miami County Dive 
team, door prizes, and mingling. It was a great evening and we’re currently planning a 
similar event in September, at Louisburg Cider Mill. 
 
• John Brown Jamboree, 2012 
We brought back the Miss Osawatomie Pageant after a long hiatus. We had 42 participants in 
grades 1-12. It was free to participate and the judging included a private interview and 
points for personality, appearance and stage walk. Girls were offered the opportunity to sell 
discount wristbands to the concert for a chance to win VIP concert tickets, admittance to the 
Eat & Greet with the bands, and a chance to meet Emerson Drive before the show. Selling 
had no bearing on the pageant scores and was optional. 28 girls participated, and sold a total 
of 297 wristbands! All contestants were invited to ride in the parade. Our judging panel 
included a former contestant, a magazine editor, a make-up artist, and a former model and 
modeling agency owner. These ladies have offered to stay involved and work towards 
making this pageant a qualifier, so winners could move on and compete in other statewide 
competitions.  

 
• Chamber Coffees 
  These are held monthly, typically the 2nd Tuesday of the month.  I attend and share 
pertinent Chamber info at the beginning, then turn it over to the hosting business to share 
information about their operations, staff, history, and goals. There are usually 15-20+ 
attendees, and the socializing/network portion lasts about half an hour.  
  A couple of weeks later, the host business is featured in the following month’s newsletter in 
the “Business Spotlight” section.  The newsletter is e-mailed and mailed to close to 200 
recipients.  This article gives those unable to attend, a look into the workings and the people 
of one of our local businesses, every month.  We want to share this information so that 



 4 

citizens will think about supporting their local businesses and looking here first, when they 
shop.  Some months, there are two. In the past year, we have held 14 coffees. 
   
• Quarterly Membership Meetings 
  We hold these several times per year at Whistle Stop, over the noon hour. We invite a 
guest speaker to discuss a topic we think is relevant and interesting to our Membership. 
  Topics this past year have included a Q&A Session focusing on recycling, with L & K 
Services. (to support the Council’s decision to implement curbside recycling).  
   Local radio station manager, Nick Marchi of KWJP 89.7fm, came and spoke about radio 
advertising opportunities and their hopes of becoming the “voice of Miami County”.  They 
share info on their coverage area and the different ways they are trying to support all Miami 
County communities.  
  JR McMahon and his team brought a powerpoint and information on the 327th and Plum 
Creek Bridge repairs, prior to the closings. They offered hand outs and detour maps to all in 
attendance, then provided them electronically, so I could e-mail the membership and serve 
as a source of information.     
    The next topic will be a presentation by Kendra Weston and Clayton Sherlock on the State 
Hospital’s newly launched Endeavor Program.  As patients near discharge, many are ready to 
get back to work.  This project’s goal is to match qualified candidates with part time 
employment opportunities within our community. One of their biggest obstacles is trying to 
get the word out to business owners, so this is a great fit with our forum. 
  These meetings average 10-15 people in attendance.  We hope and assume that as long as 
the information is good, the attendees will share the information with others.  Information on 
these meetings and prominent points are also mentioned in the following month’s newsletter. 
 
Economic Development: 
    
• “Shop at Home” Marketing Campaign  

    We are currently working on Phase 3 which will include a series of new posters 
featuring prominent resident’s pictures along with their own quotes of why they choose 
to shop at home.  Look for these around town in the coming months.  
  Last fall we created refrigerator magnets promoting this message, along with some 
local advertising, and distributed them to every household in town through the 
cooperation of the local Boy Scouts.  The extras are included in new resident packets and 
handed out at events. 
  Last Christmas we promoted “The Birth of a New American Tradition” through e-mails, 
flyers, and the Radio Station. It encouraged shoppers to think outside the box for gifts 
and purchase gift certificates for goods and services locally. Not only are you giving 
something that someone can truly use, you’re also helping support your local businesses 
in the process. It’s a win win situation. 
  We’re looking to add a new component to the message as we approach the 2012 
Holidays. Called the 350 Project, it encourages consumers to think about their local 
businesses and choose at least 3 that they would hate to see gone.  By encouraging 
them to shop locally and spend at least $50 in their three chosen stores over the 
shopping season, we hope the message will carry over the rest of the year.    
  Our large Shop at Home banners were hosted by many local businesses last year. One 
currently sits in Bill Butler’s building window on Main Street as a constant reminder. 
Goal- Educate the public that even a slight shift in spending can have a dramatic impact 
on our community.  We plan to keep adding to this concept in order to keep the idea 
fresh in people’s minds. (Marketing)(New and Existing Business Retention) 
 

 
 



 5 

• Grants for Businesses 
We worked closely with Janet McRae and Don Cawby to share the information on 
available funds, Justine Peterson, and their availability in Miami County. (New and 
Existing Business Retention)  
 

• Marketing Osawatomie Seminar  
We collaborated with the City, Economic Development, Rotary, and the Library to provide 
a marketing seminar for our community. Colleen Doctorian, Marketing Director for KCMO 
Water Services was the presenter. (Marketing)(Tourism) 
 

• OSH’s Endeavor Program 
Met with reps from this program and area leaders to discuss ways to aid these patients 
as they transition into the workforce. The program is just getting started and they need 
help spreading the word and getting community businesses on board. (Relationship 
Building)(Marketing) 

 
• Relationship Building with area Chambers 

Met quarterly with area Chambers and County Economic Development Director to 
exchange ideas and consider joint projects. Collaborated with area Chambers and outside 
forces to provide several multi-Chamber networking opportunities for our combined 
memberships to network and share ideas.  (Relationship Building)(Marketing) 
 

• Updated Marketing Materials for the county and community 
Researched requested information for the update of periodic literature designed for 
distribution. We worked with Paula Peters on updating the Miami County Visitors Guide, 
Diana Meyer on information for her new book about day trips from Kansas City, and 
collaborated with Economic Development and area chambers to produce a 2012 
countywide Scavenger Hunt.(Data Collection)(Tourism)(Marketing) 
 

• Assisted County Leaders with Real Estate Info 
Assisted Janet McRae with information on available sites and buildings in our community, 
to be included in Location One. (Data collection) 
 

• Attended KDEA’s Day on the Hill 
Interacted with Kansas Department of Commerce’s Field Staff, received information on 
state incentives on businesses relocating to Kansas, and left with valuable insight to the 
life of a site consultant and project coordinator (New Business Identification & 
Recruitment) 
 

• Targeted Business Recruitment 
Encouraged a local to move forward with her plans for a bakery/cafe, by putting her in 
touch with city and county leaders and reps from Justine Peterson.  Participated in a 
meeting with the owners of Brown’s Hardware last summer, to discuss potential solutions 
to getting the business reopened, and spoke to a shoe retailer out of Pittsburgh looking 
to relocate in the area. We sent them the requested information and kept in touch. (New 
Business Identification and Business Retention) 
 

• Provide Sources of Professional Assistance and Consulting 
We continually update and inform the Membership of classes, trainings, and services 
available to them. (Business Retention) 
 

 



 6 

• Represented Osawatomie at 6th Annual Kansas City Development Networking Event and 
Dinner 
(Networking) 
 

• Promoted Small Business Saturday 
Encouraged residents to shop local and shared information with businesses on how to 
promote themselves that day. (Marketing)(Business Retention) 
 

• 12 Days of Christmas Promotion 
Encouraged local retailers to come up with a list of 12 daily specials in the days leading 
up to Christmas, then promoted and advertised these specials for them, for the 2nd year 
in a row. (Marketing) 
 

• Advised Potential New Businesses  
Answered questions on available rental locations, the local market, and benefits of 
becoming a Chamber member to new and potential businesses. Put parties in touch with 
City and County leaders that could help them. (New Business Identification & 
Recruitment) 

 
• Attended annual Northland Advisory Board meeting (new Business Identification, 

Marketing) 
 

• Attended Kansas City Convention and Visitors Association meeting (Marketing, Tourism) 
 

• Provided Materials for the KC Fall Home and Builders Show 
Provided copies of our new homeowner incentive package and community information 
materials for our booth at this show. (Marketing)  

 
• The Main Street Program 

Attended a Main Street Conference in El Dorado to gather information on this program 
and the success it has had in many rural Kansas communities. Brought the information 
back and shared it with members of our local Economic Development committee. 
(Marketing)(Networking)(New & Existing Business Retention) 

 
• Maintained a Community Calendar 

The Chamber calendar on our webpage has a community calendar that includes many 
Osawatomie events, along with Chamber activities.  Our webpage also links to the City 
and School’s websites. We’ve added a new Community Links page which includes 
information on recreation, local churches, community events and other information. 
Residents are encourages to submit information for inclusion on this site.  
(Tourism)(Marketing) 
 

• Ku’s Red Tire Program Info 
Shared information with local businesses about this new program that matches persons 
wanting to retire with successors to keep their business going. (Business Retention) 

 
• Provided Welcome Bags to the City 

Bags with helpful community information, maps, phone books, and business flyers are 
provided to the City, for distribution to new residents turning on their utilities 
(Housing)(Marketing) 
 

 
 



 7 

• Provided Relocation Packets to new families 
Mailed relocation packets filled with community and county information, per request. 
(Housing)(Marketing) 
 

• Community Information for Events 
Stuffed bags with historical site info, maps, and community information for give away at 
local events such as the John Brown Jamboree Car Show. (Tourism)(Marketing) 

 
• Volunteered and assisted in promoting Local Events 

Assisted with City Events such as the Freedom Festival and the Christmas Festival, 
Served on the 2012 John Brown Jamboree Planning committee and met weekly with 
organizers for six months. (Tourism)(Marketing) 
 

• Attended Monthly Economic Development Meetings 
Met with other committee members on a monthly basis to discuss projects including 
revamping the City’s website, revising and condensing our local brochures, how to attract 
new businesses to town, the Main Street Program, and the Northland Property 
Development. (Marketing)(Tourism)(New and Existing Business Retention) 
 

• Worked with Partners in Education (PIE)  
Provided information on our community, businesses, and activities to be included in 
welcome bags that are distributed to new families coming into our school district. 
(Marketing)(Relationship Building) 
 

• Marketing 
Shared information with businesses on marketing and advertising opportunities. 
(Marketing)(Tourism) 
 

• Worked to maintain the Chamber’s visibility 
Our goal is to be represented at as many community events as possible.  Recently, we  
sold pop, water, and lemonade at the Jamboree, organized the John Brown Jamboree 
Baby Contest (due to my affiliation with the Sub Debs Organization as a Sponsor), 
brought back the Miss Osawatomie Pageant, and are currently planning a community ice 
cream social for later this summer. (Relationship Building) 
 
Other: 
 

- Produced a weekly newsletter filled with business sales and specials, along with 
community events 

- Put out a monthly newsletter focused on Chamber News and activities 
- Served as a community information resource and directory assistance 
- Planned and attended Ribbon Cuttings for new businesses 
- Joined Rotary and attended weekly meetings 
- Took the Miami County Leadership Class 
- Attended Miami County Intergovernmental Council Meeting 
- Served as ex-officio member of the Miami County Art Coalition (MARC) 
- Served as ex-officio member of the Osawatomie History Task Force 
- Attended Public Safety Advisory Meetings monthly, and provided a letter of 

support for their Safe Routes to School Grant application 
- Met with State Hospital Reps to discuss ways to strengthen the relationship 

between the hospital and our City. Provided community information and 
restaurant guide to be used during their new employee orientations. 



 8 

- Attended Paola’s State of the City address and met KDOC’s new Regional Project 
Manager, Craig Van Wey. 

- Attended the Miami County Elected Officials and Leadership Dinner 
- Attended a Leadership Summit in Wichita 
- Spoke to Miami County Commissioners about the Mill Street Bridge closing and 

its effect on our local commerce. 
- Attended the 5 County Regional Transportation Study to hear and provide input 

on the planning of future Miami County road improvements. 
- Coordinated with City officials to promote and share information on the Obama 

visit. Assisted City and County leaders with setting up the shuttles that day. 
- Did an interview with Channel 9 on the Obama visit 
- Assisted CenturyLink with planning and marketing an Internet Basics Training in 

our community 
- Invited OHS Stuco Reps to attend Chamber meetings and provide their input 
- Shared information on an available community garden grant with the local Pride 

Organization. 
- Attended many business Anniversary and Retirement Celebrations and 

groundbreaking ceremonies within our community and county 
- Provided the Mayor with a Business Proclamation for the month of June 
- E-mailed detour maps and did a radio interview about the Plum Creek and 327th 

Street Bridge closings 
- Drafted a letter of support for the Pfeffercorn Proposal related to the Mill Street 

Bridge 
- Spoke to NARVE about the Chamber’s work in the community 
- Assisted in the promotion of City events, made suggestions for new additions to 

the Jamboree and worked the event 
- Provided the City with new resident packets 
- Met regularly with local businesses to build and maintain relationships. Shared 

information with them about training opportunities. 
- Was a point of contact for persons considering relocation, sent relocation packets 

upon request  
- Attended City Council Meetings, to keep abreast of decisions affecting our 

community 
- Sent requested tourist information to Eastern Michigan University  
- Revised our Due Structure to include categories for Home Based Businesses and 

Utilities 
- Connected local charitable organizations with Business Leaders 
- Attended Citizen’s Advisory Board meetings at Osawatomie State Hospital  
- Met regularly with county Economic Developer and assisted with projects and 

data collection 
- Attended a MARC Solid Waste Luncheon in Shawnee. The program included info 

on recycling and e-waste. 
- Represented the community at Economic Development Functions within our city, 

county, region, and state. 
- Maintained regular office hours and welcomed visitors to the museum when we 

were open. Remained accessible after hours and on weekends, as needed. 
- Looked into bringing a circus to town as a fundraiser 
- Made $100 at our lemonade fundraiser 
- Collaborated with the Miami County Newspaper and other county Chambers to 

plan a Primary Candidates Forum for the contested races. 175 people attended. 
 
 
 



 9 

Summary: 
 
 The Board and I have worked hard this year to build the Chamber through 
activities, visibility, fiscal responsibility, and community involvement.   
 Our strong underlying belief is that when people work together, great things can 
happen.   If it’s good for City, then it’s good for the Businesses, which in turn is good 
for our Schools.  It’s all related.   
 We’d like to express our appreciation to the City Council, City Manager, and 
Mayor for your continued support and funding of this organization.  You all are a 
great bunch to work with. 

 
       

 
 
 
 
  Signed: _____________________ 

         Shelagh Wright 
         Executive Director 
          
       

  Date: _____________________ 
                                                        
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 10 

Chamber Members 2012 
* signifies the new members 

 
4D Acres Inc. 

Aflac Insurance* 
Agler & Gaeddert 

American Family Insurance, Cathy Leaver 
American Red Cross 

Associates in Family Care 
Auten Pharmacy 

Back Home Nursery* 
Beckman Motors 

Boy Scouts of America 
Bradley Air Conditioning and Heating 

Bill and Pat Butler 
Casey’s on Main 
Casey’s on Sixth 

CenturyLink* 
City of Osawatomie 
Classic Wood LLC 

Coach Light Fashions 
Community Senior Service Center 

Country Vintage Inn * 
Donna and Viola’s Shirts & Etc. 
Eddy-Birchard Funeral Home 

Electric Shop, Inc. 
Elliott Insurance* 

Eyecare Associates 
First Option Bank 

First Presbyterian Church 
Friends of the Mentally Ill Foundation* 

Great Southern Bank 
Gluten Free Group of Miami County* 

Greenbrier Rail Services 
Halls Tire & Auto* 

Hanes Florist 
Wayne Harclerode * 
Heartland Propane 
HIS Coffee Shop* 

Ted & Vivian Hunter 
JC’s Retail Liquor Store 
John Brown Foundation 

Kansas Gas Service 
KCP&L 

KOFO Radio 
KWJP Radio* 
Karen LaDuex 
La Hacienda* 

Landmark National Bank 
Life Care Center 
Tamara Maichel 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Main Body Works 
Main Street Liquor 

Medallion Healthy Homes 
Miami County Cancer Foundation 

Miami County Economic Development 
Miami County Historical and Genealogy 

Societies 
Miami County Medical Center 

Miami County Television * 
Miami County YMCA 

Miami Veterinary Clinic 
Middle Creek Winery* 

Midwest Regional Credit Union 
Moon’s Hometown Market 
Navrat’s Office Products 

Nice as New 
North Point Skilled Nursing and Rehab* 

Osawatomie ELKS #921 
Osawatomie Graphic 
Osawatomie Pride 

Osawatomie Public Library 
Osawatomie Rehabilitation Clinic 

Osawatomie Rotary Club 
Osawatomie State Hospital 

Penwell- Gabel Funeral Home and 
Crematory* 
Pizza Hut 

George & Marjorie Pretz 
Ragamuffins * 

Rainbow Clean Air Solutions 
 Read it Free/Pat’s Signs 
Rejuvenating Massage * 

Resource Center for Independent Living 
Scentsy- Tessa Osborn 

Spencer Nicole’s 
State Farm Insurance- Marsha Adams 

Norma Stephens 
Summit Publications Inc 

Ernest Swenson 
Target Lawn Care 

The UPS Store 
Tri-Ko 

USD #367, Stuco Organization 
Vintage Park 
Web Hawkins 

Woodland Hills Estates 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 



                                      Osawatomie Chamber of Commerce 
                                                        Summary 
                                             July 2011 thru June 2012 
 
 
Income                        Operations            Payroll               Total 
 
Dues                             $11,631.76          
Legislative Breakfast          500.00 
Annual Dinner                 1,170.00 
Business Expo                    935.00 
City Funding        10/2011                        $20,000.00 
                             07/2012                          10,000.00 
Misc.                                3,965.33 
Chamber Bucks                  370.00 
Total Income                 $18,572.09          $30,000.00         $48,572.09 
 
Expenses 
 
Rent                                   2100.00 
Phone                                1,596.21 
Postage                                459.10                            
PO Box rental                        96.00 
Website                                144.00 
Office Supplies                  1,073.89 
Advertising                        2,355.35 
Payroll                                                    $23,127.50 
Meridian Payroll Support                              518.00 
Ks Emp Tax/WH                                           773.40 
940/941 Tx                                                  5,366.00 
 
Chamber Bucks                    350.00 
Insurance                              375.00 
Business Expo                   1,011.19 
Annual Dinner                   1,756.11 
John Brown Jamboree       1,088.00 
Misc.                                  4,076.46 
Total Expense                $16,841.31      $29,784.90           $46,626.21 
 
Net Totals                      $  1,730.78      $     215.10           $  1,945.88 
 
 
Prepared 07/16/2012 



 
 
 
 
  

   
 

2012-08-09 SAM - 2012 Audit Engagment Letter.doc   

Osawatomie City Hall 
439 Main Street  PO Box 37 

Osawatomie, KS  66064 
Phone:  (913)755-2146 

Fax:  (913)755-4164 

 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE OF MEETING: August 9, 2012 

AGENDA ITEM: 2012 Audit Engagement Letter 

PRESENTER:  Don Cawby, City Manager 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   In order to retain our 2011 auditors—Jared, Gilmore & Phillips (JGP)—for 
2012, we will need to sign a 2012 audit engagement letter with them.   

For 2011, the cost of the audit was a not to exceed price of $8,100, plus $1,700 for the single 
audit we are required to do for federal funds expenditures over $500,000.  For 2012, the cost of 
the audit is $8,350, plus $1,900 should we require a single audit for 2012.   

The cost of the audit for 2011 and 2012, are  both a savings of over $5,000 per year from the 
2010 audit.   

COUNCIL ACTION NEEDED:  Authorize the Mayor to sign the Letter of Engagement with JGP. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Approve JGP and take the above action. 

 











 
 
 
 
  

   
 

2012-08-09 SAM - 2012 GAAP Waiver.doc   

Osawatomie City Hall 
439 Main Street  PO Box 37 

Osawatomie, KS  66064 
Phone:  (913)755-2146 

Fax:  (913)755-4164 

 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE OF MEETING: August 9, 2012 

AGENDA ITEM: 2012 GAAP Waiver 

PRESENTER:  Don Cawby, City Manager 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   K.S.A. 75-1120 requires the governing body of each municipality in Kansas 
to utilize generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as established by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 
However, the statute allows the Director of Accounts and Reports to waive the requirements 
upon the request of the governing body of any city.   

Prior to requesting the waiver, the governing body must annually pass a resolution, finding that 
financial statements and financial reports prepared in conformity with GAAP are not relevant to 
the requirements of the cash-basis and budget laws of Kansas and are of no significant value to 
the governing body or members of the general public of the municipality. 

The law does state that the waiver cannot be requested if the provisions of revenue bond 
ordinances or resolutions, or other ordinances or resolutions of the municipality, require 
financial statements and financial reports to be prepared in conformance with GAAP.   

If the waiver is granted, all financial statements and financial reports of the municipality are 
required to be prepared on the basis of cash receipts and disbursements, as adjusted to show 
compliance with the cash-basis and budget laws of Kansas.   

COUNCIL ACTION NEEDED:  Vote on the proposed resolution.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Approve the resolution. 

 



  
RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 
A RESOLUTION WAIVING THE GAAP REQUIREMENTS OF 
K.S.A. 75-1120A(a) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 2012. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Osawatomie, Kansas, has determined that the financial statements 
and financial reports for the year ended 2011 to be prepared in conformity with the requirements of 
K.S.A. 75-1120a(a) are not relevant to the requirements of the cash basis and budget laws of this 
state and are of no significant value to the Governing Body or the members of the general public of 
the City of Osawatomie; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body of the City of 
Osawatomie, Kansas, in regular meeting duly assembled this 9th day of August, 2012 that the 
Governing Body waives the requirements of K.S.A. 75-1120a(a) as they apply to the City of 
Osawatomie for the year ended 2012. 
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Governing Body shall cause the financial statements 
and financial reports of the City of Osawatomie to be prepared on the basis of cash receipts and 
disbursements as adjusted to show compliance with the cash basis and budget laws of this State.   
  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Body of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas this 
9th day of August, 2012, a majority being in favor thereof. 
 

APPROVED AND SIGNED by the Mayor. 
 
 

 
___________________________________        

                                                               Philip A. Dudley 
Mayor 
 

(SEAL) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________                                                                
Ann Elmquist 
City Clerk 



 
 
 
 
  

   
 

2012-08-09 SAM - Propsed 2012-13 Budget.docx   

Osawatomie City Hall 
439 Main Street  PO Box 37 

Osawatomie, KS  66064 
Phone:  (913)755-2146 

Fax:  (913)755-4164 

 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE OF MEETING: August 9, 2012 

AGENDA ITEM: Proposed 2012-2013 Budget 

PRESENTER:  Don Cawby, City Manager 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   Included in the packet is the basic budget information on the 2013 Budget 
Certificate which you will need to sign when passing the 2013 budget.  I still have some work 
today to clean up the supplemental information such as the transfer listing and some lease 
purchase information.  I will on have the final version of all the state budget forms by Thursday 
night’s meeting.  However, there will be no significant changes from the budget you approved 
on July 19th.   

For changes to the 2012 budget, we will have to adopt some budget amendments.  Most of 
these are a product of changes to how we account for expenditures, such as all health 
insurance payments moving through the Employee Benefit Fund.  However, I am 
recommending that we wait until later in the year to make those changes so that we only have 
to pass a budget amendment once.  We may also find that some of the planned increases in 
expenditures may not happen and an amendment is not necessary. 

COUNCIL ACTION NEEDED:  To adopt the budget for 2013, you must conduct the hearing.  Then 
you may make any changes except an increase in the mill levy.  After you will vote to approve 
the budget and will have to sign the budget certificate which Ann will provide for you.  Finally, 
you will need to pass the budget ordinance which is explained in a following memorandum. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Approve the budget as presented. 

 



CERTIFICATE

We, the undersigned, officers of

certify that: (1) the hearing mentioned in the attached publication was held;
(2) after the Budget Hearing this budget was duly approved and adopted as the

maximum expenditures for the various funds for the year 2013; and
(3) the Amounts(s) of 2012 Ad Valorem Tax are within statutory limitations.

2013 Adopted Budget
 Amount of 2012 County

Page Budget Authority Ad Valorem Clerk's
Table of Contents: No. for Expenditures Tax Use Only
Computation to Determine Limit for 2013 2
Allocation of MVT, RVT, 16/20M Vehicle Tax 3
Schedule of Transfers 4
Statement of Indebtedness 5
Statement of Lease-Purchases 6
Fund K.S.A.
General 12-101a 7 2,140,661 576,535
Debt Service 10-113 8 812,788 237,410
Library 12-1220 9 126,000   
Industrial 12-1617h 10 41,500
Employee Benefits 12-16,102 10 665,752 509,688
Public Safety Equipment 12-110b 11   
Recreation Employee Benefits 12-16,102 11 2,419
Street Improvements 12 129,000
Refuse 12 376,700
Golf Course 13 249,090
Special Revenue (911) 13 9,897
Tourism 14 46,250
Water 15 814,796
Electric 16 4,017,520
Sewer 17 836,249
Special Parks & Recreation 18 240,278
Non-Budgeted CIP Funds 19
Non-Budgeted Agency Funds 1 20
Non-Budgeted Agency Funds 2 21
    
Totals for City xxxxxx 10,508,900 1,323,633
Recreation 12-1927 9 13,456   0.000
Totals  Includes Recreation xxxxxx 10,522,356 1,323,633
Is an Ordinance required  to be passed, published, and attached to the budge Yes County Clerk's Use Only

Budget Summary 22
Neighborhood Revitalization Rebate
Assisted by:

________________________  __________________________
Address:

________________________  __________________________

Email: ________________________  __________________________

________________________  __________________________
Attest:_____________________,2012

________________________  __________________________
County Clerk

City of Osawatomie

To the Clerk of Miami County, State of Kansas

Governing Body

Nov 1, 2012 Total 
Assessed Valuation



City of Osawatomie 2013

Amount of Levy
 1. Total Tax Levy Amount in 2012 Budget + $ 1,236,166
 2. Debt Service Levy in 2012 Budget - $ 251,791
  3. Tax Levy Excluding Debt Service $ 984,375

2012 Valuation Information for Valuation Adjustments:

 4. New Improvements for 2012: + 4,723

 5. Increase in Personal Property for 2012:
5a. Personal Property 2012 + 313,394
5b. Personal Property 2011 - 342,524
5c. Increase in Personal Property (5a minus 5b) + 0

(Use Only if > 0)
6. Valuation of annexed territory for 2012

6a. Real Estate + 0
6b. State Assessed + 0
6c. New Improvements - 0
6d. Total Adjustment (Sum of 6a, 6b, and 6c) + 0

7. Valuation of Property that has Changed in Use during 2012 1,297
 
8. Total Valuation Adjustment (Sum of 4, 5c, 6d &7) 6,020

9. Total Estimated Valuation July 1,2012 22,729,900

10. Total Valuation less Valuation Adjustment (9 minus 8) 22,723,880

11. Factor for Increase (8 divided by 10) 0.00026

12. Amount of Increase (11 times 3) + $ 261

13. Maximum Tax Levy, excluding debt service, without an Ordinance (3 plus 12) $ 984,636

14. Debt Service in this 2013 Budget 237,410

15. Maximum levy, including debt service, without an Ordinance (13 plus 14) 1,222,046

If the 2013 budget includes tax levies exceeding the total on line 15, you must

attach a copy of the published ordinance to this budget.

Computation to Determine Limit for 2013

adopt an ordinance to exceed this limit, publish the ordinance, and



City of Osawatomie 2013

Budgeted Fund Budget Tax Levy 
for 2012 Amount for 2011 MVT RVT 16/20M Veh

General 514,514 49,081 692 249
Bond & Interest 251,791 24,019 339 121
Library       
Industrial       
Employee Benefits 458,346 43,723 616 221
Public Safety Equipment       
Recreation Employee Be 11,515 1,098 15 6
        
        
        
        
        
        
Recreation 92,124 8,788 124 44
TOTAL 1,328,290 126,709 1,786 641

County Treas Motor Vehicle Estimate 126,709
County Treasurers Recreational Vehicle Estimate 1,786
County Treasurers 16/20M Vehicle Estimate 641

Motor Vehicle Factor 0.09539
Recreational Vehicle Factor 0.00134

16/20M Vehicle Factor 0.00048

Allocation of Motor, Recreational, 16/20M Vehicle Tax 

Allocation for Year 2013



City of Osawatomie 2013

Expenditure Receipt Actual Current Proposed Transfers
Fund Transferred Fund Transferred Amount for Amount for Amount for Authorized by

From: To: 2011 2012 2013  Statute
Water General 115,400            116,200            12-825d
Water Employee Benefit 10,478              22,515              12-825d
Water Bond & Interest 27,235              59,827              12-825d

Electric General 743,800            388,200            314,600            12-825d
Electric Employee Benefit 45,000              70,268              53,348              12-825d
Electric Water 12-825d
Electric Street Improvement 17,000              12-825d
Electric Special Parks & Rec 90,000              175,000            12-825d
Electric Golf 65,000              45,000              30,000              12-825d
Electric Tourism 12,000              12,000              12-825d
Electric Capital Projects - Genera 27,500              380,000            85,000              12-825d
Electric Capital Projects - Street 452,132            12-825d
Electric Capital Projects - Grants 25,000              12-1,118

Employee Benefits Fund Cafeteria 125/HRA 27,488              52,196              79-2934
Library General 2,811                79-2958
Library Capital Projects - Grants 20,020              100,000            12-1,118

Recreation Electric Fund 22,000              79-2934
Recreation Special Parks & Rec 98,720              13,456              79-2958

Sewer General 77,900              116,400            116,200            12-825d
Sewer Employee Benefit 6,837                14,739              79-2934
Sewer Bond & Interest 200,000            310,000            434,000            12-825d

Rec Employee Benefits Employee Benefit 12,238              2,419                79-2934
Capital Projects - Street Electric Fund 452,132            12-1,118
Capital Projects - Street Street Improvement 77,950              12-1,118
Capital Projects - Street Bond & Interest 5,000                12-1,118
Capital Projects - StreetCapital Projects - General 12,164              12-1,118

Totals 1,673,163 2,257,511 1,626,500
Adjustments

Adjusted Totals 1,673,163 2,257,511 1,626,500

*Note: Adjustments are required only if the transfer is being made in 2012 and/or 2013 from a non-budgeted fund

Schedule of Transfers



City of Osawatomie 2013

STATEMENT OF INDEBTEDNESS

Date Date Interest Beginning Amount    Amount Due    Amount Due
Type of of of Rate Amount Outstanding
 Debt Issue Retirement % Issued Jan 1,2012 Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal

General Obligation:
Series 2003A Street Bonds 9/1/03 9/1/18 3.75-4.5 475,000 265,000 3/1 & 9/1 9/1 5,753 refinanced refinanced refinanced
Series 2008A Sewer Rehab. 11/1/08 9/1/48 4.50 3,550,000 3,450,000 10/28 10/28 155,250 37,000 153,585 39,000
Series 2008B Street Bonds 11/1/08 9/1/28 4.1 - 5.5 2,435,000 2,340,000 3/1 & 9/1 9/1 103,528 75,000 99,403 75,000

2012 G.O. Refunding Bonds 5/8/2012 9/1/2027 2.0-3.0 2,810,000 0 3/1 & 9/1 9/1 19,733 170,000 55,800 330,000

Series 2003A Refinanced by 2012 GO Refunding Bonds

Total G.O. Bonds 6,055,000 284,264 282,000 308,788 444,000
Revenue Bonds:

Total Revenue Bonds 0 0 0 0 0
Other:
KDHE SRLF - Sewer 1314 Various 9/1/16 3.54 1,518,929 455,169 3/1 & 9/1 3/1 & 9/1 8,056 50,064 refinanced refinanced
KDHE SRLF - Sewer 1395 Various 9/1/19 3.13 2,413,903 1,058,419 3/1 & 9/1 3/1 & 9/1 16,564 75,292 refinanced refinanced
KDHE SRLF - Water 2128 7/26/01 2/1/23 3.86 901,479 587,583 2/1 & 8/1 2/1 & 8/1 12,369 32,491 refinanced refinanced

All Refinanced by 2012 GO Refunding Bonds

Total Other 2,101,171 36,989 157,848 0 0
Total Indebtedness 8,156,171 321,253 439,848 308,788 444,000

  Date Due 2012 2013



City of Osawatomie 2013

STATEMENT OF CONDITIONAL LEASE-PURCHASE AND CERTIFICATE OF PARTICIPATION*

Total
Term of Interest Amount Principal Payments Payments

Items   Contract Contract Rate Financed Balance On Due Due
 Purchased Date (Months) % (Beginning Principal) Jan 1,2012 2012 2013

Golf Course Irrigation & Equip. 11/6/2006 180 5.75 194,527 146,079 refinanced below refinanced below
Golf Course Golf Carts 5/19/2010 24 4.49 49,910 10,770 10,891 0

Refinanced OGC Irr & Equip 3/23/2012 122 3.25 147,514 0 17,312 17,312

`

Totals 156,849 28,203 17,312



City of Osawatomie 2013

FUND PAGE FOR FUNDS WITH A TAX LEVY
Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
General Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Unencumbered Cash Balance Jan 1 25,728 30,825 37,972
Receipts:
Ad Valorem Tax 432,233 483,643 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
Delinquent Tax 17,885 18,000 16,000
Motor Vehicle Tax 50,360 47,500 49,081
Recreational Vehicle Tax 731 708 692
16/20M Vehicle Tax 249
Local Alcoholic Liquor 3,630 4,500 3,544
City Sales Tax 241,692 241,000 243,892
County Sales Tax 307,604 307,000 310,684
Compensating Use Tax 75,716 82,700 84,354
Franchise Tax 156,721 118,800 122,450
Licenses 36,554 33,500 34,580
Charges for Services 55,826 48,500 39,900
Fines and Fees 101,608 122,000 122,000
Transfer In from Electric 743,800 186,000 113,000
Transer In from Sewer 77,900 39,000 39,000
Transfer In from Water 38,000 39,000
Transfer in from Library 2,811
Overhead Fees Transfers 357,000 356,000
Sale of Fixed Assets 1,750 1,000 1,000
Grants 11,392 11,000 17,000
Reimbursed Expense 46,394 14,000 18,000
Interest on Idle Funds 22,095 18,000 20,000
Miscellaneous 7,221 11,750 10,250
Does miscellaneous exceed 10% Total Rec
Total Receipts 2,393,923 2,183,601 1,640,675
Resources Available: 2,419,651 2,214,426 1,678,647

Page No. 7



City of Osawatomie

FUND PAGE - GENERAL
Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
General Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Resources Available: 2,419,651 2,214,426 1,678,647
Expenditures:
Administration 528,084 577,621 574,627
Sports Complex 81,789 0 0
Police & Fire 934,374 866,882 906,282
John Brown Cabin 41,507 43,778 45,666
Streets & Alleys 284,437 252,074 237,059
Swimming Pool 38,954 31,676 18,146
Cemeteries 117,328 133,690 103,327
Lakes & Parks 8,110 0 0
Municipal Court 120,656 106,721 108,417
Levees & Stormwater 121,175 36,000 7,000
Library 112,413 128,012 140,136
Miscellaneous
Does miscellaneous exceed 10% Total Exp
Total Expenditures 2,388,827 2,176,454 2,140,661
Unencumbered Cash Balance Dec 31 30,825 37,972 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

2011/2012 Budget Authority Amount: 2,391,221 2,291,543 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
81,888

     2,222,549
     Tax Required 543,901

Delinquent Comp Rate: 6.0% 32,634
576,535

Page No. 7b

Non-Appropriated Balance
Total Expenditure/Non-Appr Balance

Amount of  2012 Ad Valorem Tax



City of Osawatomie 2013

Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
           General Fund - Detail Page 1 Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Expenditures:
Administration
  Salaries 400,497 429,721 425,017
  Contractual 88,457 107,600 108,810
  Commodities 14,782 11,500 11,700
  Capital Outlay 4,070 8,000 8,800
  Other Assistance 20,278 20,800 20,300
Total 528,084 577,621 574,627
Sports Complex
  Salaries 40,378 0 0
  Contractual 20,379 0 0
  Commodities 18,202 0 0
  Capital Outlay 2,830 0 0
Total 81,789 0 0
Police & Fire
  Salaries 784,083 716,676 749,149
  Contractual 78,974 75,706 78,734
  Commodities 64,281 66,500 70,400
  Capital Outlay 7,037 8,000 8,000
Total 934,374 866,882 906,282
John Brown Cabin
  Salaries 25,954 26,021 27,041
  Contractual 14,624 15,307 16,175
  Commodities 929 1,450 1,450
  Capital Outlay 0 1,000 1,000
Total 41,507 43,778 45,666
Streets & Alleys
  Salaries 246,755 201,074 184,815
  Contractual 19,849 40,800 42,044
  Commodities 17,833 10,200 10,200
  Capital Outlay
Total 284,437 252,074 237,059
Swimming Pool
  Salaries 23,431 0 0
  Contractual 9,600 17,446 17,146
  Commodities 5,923 2,000 1,000
  Capital Outlay 0 12,230 0
Total 38,954 31,676 18,146

Page 1 - Total 1,909,145 1,772,030 1,781,781

Page No. 7c



City of Osawatomie 2013

Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
           General Fund - Detail Page 2 Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Expenditures:
Cemeteries
  Salaries 77,442 92,586 60,990
  Contractual 28,758 32,055 32,287
  Commodities 11,129 9,050 10,050
  Capital Outlay
Total 117,328 133,690 103,327
Lakes & Parks
  Salaries 0 0 0
  Contractual 2,220 0 0
  Commodities 5,890 0 0
  Capital Outlay
Total 8,110 0 0
Municipal Court
  Salaries 19,210 19,537 21,186
  Contractual 101,246 86,884 86,931
  Commodities 200 300 300
  Capital Outlay
Total 120,656 106,721 108,417
Levees & Stormwater
  Salaries 0 0 0
  Contractual 119,983 34,250 250
  Commodities 1,192 1,750 1,750
  Capital Outlay 0 0 5,000
Total 121,175 36,000 7,000
Library
  Salaries 76,134 82,512 87,636
  Contractual 9,808 12,450 14,950
  Commodities 25,484 32,550 37,050
  Capital Outlay 987 500 500
Total 112,413 128,012 140,136

Page 2 -Total 479,682 404,423 358,880
Page 1 -Total 1,909,145 1,772,030 1,781,781
Grand Total 2,388,827 2,176,454 2,140,661
(Note: Should agree with general sub-totals.)

Page No. 7d



City of Osawatomie 2013

FUND PAGE FOR FUNDS WITH A TAX LEVY
Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
Bond & Interest Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Unencumbered Cash Balance Jan 1 64,375 61,002 98,902
Receipts:
Ad Valorem Tax 190,698 236,684 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
Delinquent Tax 5,110 5,500 5,500
Motor Vehicle Tax 13,507 18,549 24,019
Recreational Vehicle Tax 313 339
16/20M Vehicle Tax 130 121
Special Assessment 190
Transfer In from Sewer 200,000 310,000 434,000
Transfer In from Water 27,235 59,827
Interest on Idle Funds
Miscellaneous
Does miscellaneous exceed 10% Total Rec
Total Receipts 409,504 598,411 523,806
Resources Available: 473,879 659,413 622,708
Expenditures:
Bond Principal 136,000 282,000 444,000
Bond Interest 276,878 278,511 308,788
Miscellaneous 60,000
Does miscellaneous exceed 10% Total Exp
Total Expenditures 412,878 560,511 812,788
Unencumbered Cash Balance Dec 31 61,002 98,902 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

2011/2012 Budget Authority Amount: 482,519 544,658 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
33,892

     See Tab C 846,680
     Tax Required 223,972

Delinquent Comp Rate: 6.0% 13,438
237,410

Page No. 8

Amount of  2012 Ad Valorem Tax

Non-Appropriated Balance
Total Expenditure/Non-Appr Balance



City of Osawatomie 2013

FUND PAGE FOR FUNDS WITH A TAX LEVY
Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
Library Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Unencumbered Cash Balance Jan 1 109,550 91,626 107,788
Receipts:
Ad Valorem Tax 52 0 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
Delinquent Tax 1,198 500
Motor Vehicle Tax 1,550   
Recreational Vehicle Tax 11  
Grant Receipts (Non-CDBG) 8,263 8,263
Donations 9,699 6,800 22,000
Interest on Idle Funds 864 600 600
Total Receipts 21,636 16,163 22,600
Resources Available: 131,187 107,788 130,388
Expenditures:
Professional Services 16,011
Other Contractual 720 20,000
Other Commodities 6,000
Transfer Out - To General 2,811
Transfer Out - Library Project Fund 20,020 100,000
Total Expenditures 39,561 0 126,000
Unencumbered Cash Balance Dec 31 91,626 107,788 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

2011/2012 Budget Authority Amount: 46,916 109,551 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
4,388

     130,388
     Tax Required 0

Delinquent Comp Rate: 6.0% 0
0

Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
Recreation Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Unencumbered Cash Balance Jan 1 443 714 0
Receipts:
Ad Valorem Tax 89,448 86,597 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
Delinquent Tax 3,395 2,500 4,500
Motor Vehicle Tax 9,144 8,702 8,788
Recreational Vehicle Tax 131 147 124
16/20M Vehicle Tax 61 44
Reimbursed Expense 40,734
Interest on Idle Funds
Total Receipts 142,851 98,007 13,456
Resources Available: 143,294 98,721 13,456
Expenditures:
Salaries & Wages 40,463
Appropriation 80,118
Transfer to Electric Fund 22,000
Transfer to Special Parks & Recreation Fund 98,720 13,456
Total Expenditures 142,581 98,720 13,456
Unencumbered Cash Balance Dec 31 714 0 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

2011/2012 Budget Authority Amount: 176,766 174,829 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
0

     13,456
     Tax Required 0

Delinquent Comp Rate: 6.0% 0
0

Page No. 9

Amount of  -1 Ad Valorem Tax

Non-Appropriated Balance
Total Expenditure/Non-Appr Balance

Non-Appropriated Balance
Total Expenditure/Non-Appr Balance

Amount of  -1 Ad Valorem Tax



City of Osawatomie 2013

FUND PAGE FOR FUNDS WITH A TAX LEVY
Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
Industrial Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Unencumbered Cash Balance Jan 1 45,540 48,169 52,669
Receipts:
Ad Valorem Tax 5 0 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
Delinquent Tax 157
Motor Vehicle Tax 179   
Recreational Vehicle Tax 1  
Property Leases 18,184 16,000 16,000
Total Receipts 18,526 16,000 16,000
Resources Available: 64,066 64,169 68,669
Expenditures:
Professional Services 1,933 5,000 20,000
Other Contractual Services 12,159 5,000 20,000
Other Commodities 1,805 1,500 1,500
Total Expenditures 15,896 11,500 41,500
Unencumbered Cash Balance Dec 31 48,169 52,669 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

2011/2012 Budget Authority Amount: 22,091 12,000 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

     41,500
     Tax Required 0

Delinquent Comp Rate: 6.0% 0
0

Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
Employee Benefits Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Unencumbered Cash Balance Jan 1 1,000 28,832 55,042
Receipts:
Ad Valorem Tax 467,468 430,845 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
Delinquent Tax 16,611 18,000 16,000
Motor Vehicle Tax 45,617 45,344 43,723
Recreational Vehicle Tax 658 701 616
16/20M Vehicle Tax 221
Transfer from  Electric 45,000 70,268 53,348
Transfer from Water 0 10,478 22,515
Transfer from Sewer 0 6,837 14,739
Transfer from Recreation Emp Ben Fund 0 12,238 2,419
Total Receipts 575,353 594,712 153,581
Resources Available: 576,353 623,543 208,622
Expenditures:
FICA 134,895 137,072 136,796
KPERS 122,850 134,553 126,960
Health Insurance 235,306 218,746 293,419
Workers' Compensation 45,597 46,622 47,593
Unemployment Insurance 8,528 4,022 8,788
Other Contractual 345
Transfer to 125/HRA Fund 27,488 52,196
Total Expenditures 547,521 568,502 665,752
Unencumbered Cash Balance Dec 31 28,832 55,042 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

2011/2012 Budget Authority Amount: 572,317 521,318 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
23,708

     689,460
     Tax Required 480,838

Delinquent Comp Rate: 6.0% 28,850
509,688

Page No. 10

Amount of  2012 Ad Valorem Tax

Amount of  2012 Ad Valorem Tax

Non-Appropriated Balance
Total Expenditure/Non-Appr Balance

Non-Appropriated Balance
Total Expenditure/Non-Appr Balance



City of Osawatomie 2013

FUND PAGE FOR FUNDS WITH A TAX LEVY
Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
Public Safety Equipment Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Unencumbered Cash Balance Jan 1 9,520 9,772 0
Receipts:
Ad Valorem Tax 6 0 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
Delinquent Tax 86
Motor Vehicle Tax 159   
Recreational Vehicle Tax 1  
Total Receipts 252 0 0
Resources Available: 9,772 9,772 0
Expenditures:
Capital Equipment 9,772
Total Expenditures 0 9,772 0
Unencumbered Cash Balance Dec 31 9,772 0 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

2011/2012 Budget Authority Amount: 9,817 9,520 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

     0
     Tax Required 0

Delinquent Comp Rate: 6.0% 0
0

Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
Recreation Employee Benefits Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Unencumbered Cash Balance Jan 1 0 0 0
Receipts:
Ad Valorem Tax 11,181 10,824 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
Delinquent Tax 424 300 1,300
Motor Vehicle Tax 1,144 1,088 1,098
Recreational Vehicle Tax 16 18 15
16/20M Vehicle Tax 8 6
Total Receipts 12,765 12,238 2,419
Resources Available: 12,765 12,238 2,419
Expenditures:
Appropriation 12,765 0 0
Transfer To Employee Benefit Fund 12,238 2,419
Total Expenditures 12,765 12,238 2,419
Unencumbered Cash Balance Dec 31 0 0 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

2011/2012 Budget Authority Amount: 13,096 12,629 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

     2,419
     Tax Required 0

Delinquent Comp Rate: 6.0% 0
0

Page No. 11

Amount of  2012 Ad Valorem Tax

Non-Appropriated Balance
Total Expenditure/Non-Appr Balance

Non-Appropriated Balance
Total Expenditure/Non-Appr Balance

Amount of  2012 Ad Valorem Tax



City of Osawatomie 2013

FUND PAGE FOR FUNDS WITH NO TAX LEVY
Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
Street Improvements Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Unencumbered Cash Balance Jan 1 1,000 4,662 79,008
Receipts:
State of Kansas Gas Tax 117,273 114,860 115,740
County Transfers Gas 0 0
City Connecting Links from County 5,100 5,100 5,100
Transfer from Electric 17,000
Transfer from CIP-Streets (reimbursement) 65,786
Total Receipts 139,373 185,746 120,840
Resources Available: 140,373 190,408 199,848
Expenditures:
Contractual Services 46,017 0 0
Machine Parts 10,367 15,000 15,000
Street Materials 50,958 55,000 55,000
Fuel 10,125 17,000 17,000
Other Commodities 737 2,000 2,000
Equipment 0 2,400 0
Chip/Seal 0 20,000 40,000
Vehicles 17,506 0 0
Total Expenditures 135,711 111,400 129,000
Unencumbered Cash Balance Dec 31 4,662 79,008 70,848

2011/2012 Budget Authority Amount: 136,489 120,500

Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
Refuse Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Unencumbered Cash Balance Jan 1 6,472 4,725 5,025
Receipts:
Sales/Charges 367,613 377,000 377,000
Total Receipts 367,613 377,000 377,000
Resources Available: 374,085 381,725 382,025
Expenditures:
Contract Collection 2,025 1,400 1,400
Other Contractual 366,704 375,000 375,000
Office Supplies 632 300 300
Total Expenditures 369,360 376,700 376,700
Unencumbered Cash Balance Dec 31 4,725 5,025 5,325

2011/2012 Budget Authority Amount: 381,950 376,700

Page No. 12



City of Osawatomie 2013

FUND PAGE FOR FUNDS WITH NO TAX LEVY
Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
Golf Course Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Unencumbered Cash Balance Jan 1 -33 3,328 12,069
Receipts:
Greens & Range Fees 57,653 59,600 59,600
Member Fees 83,138 76,100 78,383
Cart Related Fees 36,409 39,700 39,700
Food & Beverage 37,558 37,000 37,000
Miscellaneous 2,684 2,500 2,500
Transfer from Electric 65,000 45,000 30,000
Total Receipts 282,442 259,900 247,183
Resources Available: 282,409 263,228 259,252
Expenditures:
Salaries & Wages 140,264 121,144 127,348
Utilities 15,649 16,432 17,253
Rentals 5,068 5,250 5,250
Chemicals/Seed/Fertilizer 14,583 17,000 17,510
Fuels 13,308 9,500 9,785
Food & Beverage 21,025 20,000 20,000
Construction Equipment 2,817 4,000 4,000
Debt Service 45,832 30,584 19,693
All Other Expenditures 20,533 27,250 28,250
Total Expenditures 279,081 251,159 249,090
Unencumbered Cash Balance Dec 31 3,328 12,069 10,162

2011/2012 Budget Authority Amount: 313,307 282,892

Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
Special Revenue (911) Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Unencumbered Cash Balance Jan 1 9,897 9,897 9,897
Receipts:

Total Receipts 0 0 0
Resources Available: 9,897 9,897 9,897
Expenditures:
Operational/Construction Equipment 9,897

Total Expenditures 0 0 9,897
Unencumbered Cash Balance Dec 31 9,897 9,897 0

2011/2012 Budget Authority Amount: 11,979 9,897

Page No. 13



City of Osawatomie 2013

FUND PAGE FOR FUNDS WITH NO TAX LEVY
Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
Tourism Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Unencumbered Cash Balance Jan 1 6,225 3,723 7,933
Receipts:
Transient Guest Tax 4,510 5,000 5,000
Old Stone Church Rent 250 150 150
Reimbursed Expense 63 0 0
Transfer from Electric Fund for Jamboree 12,000 12,000
Transfer from Pay Pal 0 110 0
Historic Preservation Fund 2,124 500 500
Educational Garden Fund 221 200 200
Donations 7,822 4,000 4,000
Souvenirs 39 500 500
John Brown Jamboree 28,000 30,000
Total Receipts 15,028 50,460 52,350
Resources Available: 21,253 54,183 60,283
Expenditures:
Dues & Membership 160 150 150
Education, Meetings & Travel 2,478 1,500 1,500
Professional 150 200 200
Printing and Advertising 3,821 2,000 2,000
Other Contracutal 5,314 4,000 4,000
Office Supplies 220 400 400
Other Commodities 3,165 3,000 3,000
Special Events - Jamboree 35,000 35,000
Old Stone Church 2,222
Total Expenditures 17,531 46,250 46,250
Unencumbered Cash Balance Dec 31 3,723 7,933 14,033

2011/2012 Budget Authority Amount: 26,150 17,750
See Tab C

Page No. 14



City of Osawatomie 2013

FUND PAGE FOR FUNDS WITH NO TAX LEVY
Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
Water Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Unencumbered Cash Balance Jan 1 -2,047 43,575 34,611
Receipts:
Water Sales 741,505 774,872 785,995
Bulk Water Sales 17,128 15,000 16,000
New Utility Services 800 1,000 1,000
Other Charges 3,286
Miscellaneous Revenue 76 1,000 1,000
Reimbursed Expense 0 4,000 4,000
Water Protection Tax 4,313 3,487 3,537
Tower Lease 11,592 11,592 11,592
Total Receipts 778,699 810,951 823,124
Resources Available: 776,652 854,527 857,735
Expenditures:
Administration
  Personnel 202 0 0
  Contractual Services 19,013 21,198 21,934
  Commodities 727 1,300 1,300
  Capital Outlay 1,740 0 2,000
  Debt Service 64,983 32,491 0
  Transfer to General Fund 0 38,000 39,000
  Transfer to Bond & Interest 27,235 59,827
  Transfer to Employee Benefits 0 10,478 22,515
  Transfer to General Fund (Overhead) 0 77,400 77,200
  State Taxes & Fees 37,603 40,249 41,985
Treatment
  Personnel 133,483 96,727 69,496
  Contractual Services 58,023 63,407 65,495
  Commodities 154,590 170,024 181,609
  Capital Outlay 34,813 20,000 20,000
Distribution
  Personnel 111,954 94,471 68,351
  Contractual Services 67,355 69,485 71,635
  Commodities 48,591 42,450 42,450
  Capital Outlay 0 15,000 30,000
Total Expenditures 733,076 819,916 814,796
Unencumbered Cash Balance Dec 31 43,575 34,611 42,938

2011 Budget Authority Limited Amount: 879,167 832,025

Page No. 15



City of Osawatomie 2013

FUND PAGE FOR FUNDS WITH NO TAX LEVY
Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
Electric Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Unencumbered Cash Balance Jan 1 852,395 216,891 453,715
Receipts:
Sales and Charges 3,612,738 3,707,931 3,769,722
Penalties and Fees 93,430 87,250 87,250
Utility Deposits 53,450 50,000 50,000
Sales Taxes Collected 113,888 115,198 117,175
Transfers In 22,000 452,132
Miscellaneous 52,716 14,000 14,000
Total Receipts 3,948,224 4,426,511 4,038,147
Resources Available: 4,800,618 4,643,401 4,491,862
Expenditures:
Administration
  Personnel 2,199
  Contractual Services 49,489 67,553 70,560
  Commodities 10,839 4,750 4,750
  Capital Outlay 10,843 10,000 10,000
  Transfer Out - To General 743,800 186,000 113,000
  Transfer Out - To Capital Improvements 27,500 380,000 85,000
  Transfer Out - To Golf Course 65,000 45,000 30,000
  Transfer Out - To Street Improvement 17,000
  Transfer Out - Street CIP 452,132
  Transfer Out - CIP Grants (Library) 25,000
  Transfer Out - Special Parks and Recreation 90,000 175,000
  Transfer Out - Tourism (JBJ) 12,000 12,000
  Transfer Out - To EBF for insurance 20,268 53,348
  Transfer Out - To Employee Benefit 45,000 50,000
  Transfer to General Fund (Overhead) 202,200 201,600
  Deposit Refunds and Interest 52,955 51,000 51,000
  State Taxes & Fees 131,481 125,498 127,352
  Other Assistance 15,000 16,000 16,000
Production
  Personnel 120,066 128,930 128,202
  Contractual Services 2,181,093 2,237,371 2,278,941
  Commodities 12,053 52,500 52,500
Distribution
  Personnel 269,712 293,424 285,699
  Contractual Services 65,364 75,794 78,168
  Commodities 107,869 81,400 91,400
  Capital Outlay 204,333 60,000 128,000
Total Expenditures 4,583,727 4,189,686 4,017,520
Unencumbered Cash Balance Dec 31 216,891 453,715 474,342

2011 Budget Authority Limited Amount: 4,756,843 3,765,012
See Tab C

Page No. 16



City of Osawatomie 2013

FUND PAGE FOR FUNDS WITH NO TAX LEVY
Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
Sewer Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Unencumbered Cash Balance Jan 1 428,138 361,440 289,400
Receipts:
Sales/Charges 771,765 771,765 775,624
New Utility Services 350 500 500
Total Receipts 772,115 772,265 776,124
Resources Available: 1,200,253 1,133,705 1,065,524
Expenditures:
  Personnel 114,949 107,112 97,710
  Contractual Services 63,949 74,950 74,950
  Commodities 43,140 53,650 53,650
  Capital Outlay 88,161 50,000 25,000
  Debt Service 250,713 125,357 20,000
  Transfer to General Fund 77,900 39,000 39,000
  Transfer to Employee Benefits 6,837 14,739
  Tranfer to Bond & Interest 200,000 310,000 434,000
  Transfer to General Fund (Overhead) 0 77,400 77,200
Total Expenditures 838,813 844,305 836,249
Unencumbered Cash Balance Dec 31 361,440 289,400 229,274

2011/2012 Budget Authority Amount: 853,642 837,988
See Tab C

Page No. 17



City of Osawatomie 2013

FUND PAGE FOR FUNDS WITH NO TAX LEVY
Adopted Budget Prior Year Current Year Proposed Budget 
Special Parks & Recreation Actual for 2011 Estimate for 2012 Year for 2013
Unencumbered Cash Balance Jan 1 9,296 12,692 39,890
Receipts:
Liquor Tax 3,630 4,500 3,544
Registration Fees 24,000 24,000
Tournament Registrations
Tournament Gate
Concessions 15,000 15,000
Sponsorship Fees 6,000 6,000
Donations 0
Reimbursed Expense 48,000 0
Transfer from Recreation Fund 0 98,720 13,456
Transfer from Electric Fund 90,000 175,000
Balance from Recreation Commission 2,000
Miscellaneous 5,800 5,000
Does miscellaneous exceed 10% Total Rec
Total Receipts 3,630 294,020 242,000
Resources Available: 12,926 306,713 281,890
Expenditures:
Facilities
  Salaries & Wages 0 54,311 55,649
  Contractual Services 142 24,450 24,450
  Commodities 92 30,350 30,350
  Capital Outlay 0 12,000 17,000
Recreation Programs
  Salaries & Wages 0 49,737 52,354
  Contractual Services 0 35,200 26,200
  Commodities 0 37,000 33,000
  Capital Outlay 0 0 0
  Taxes & Fees 0 23,775 1,275
Total Expenditures 233 266,823 240,278
Unencumbered Cash Balance Dec 31 12,692 39,890 41,611

2011/2012 Budget Authority Amount: 12,029 13,674
See Tab C

Page No. 18



City of Osawatomie NON-BUDGETED FUNDS (A) 2013
(Only the actual budget year for 2011 is to be shown)

Non-Budgeted CIP Funds
(1) Fund Name: (2) Fund Name: (3) Fund Name: (4) Fund Name: (5) Fund Name:

Unencumbered Unencumbered Unencumbered Unencumbered Unencumbered Total
Cash Balance Jan 1 1,075 Cash Balance Jan 1 0 Cash Balance Jan 1 0 Cash Balance Jan 1 1,180 Cash Balance Jan 1 2,255

Receipts: Receipts: Receipts: Receipts: Receipts:

Transfer from Electric 27,500 Federal Grant Proceeds 496,945 Federal Grant Proceeds 50,432

Transfer from Electric 452,132 Transfer from Library 20,020

Total Receipts 27,500 Total Receipts 949,077 Total Receipts 0 Total Receipts 70,452 Total Receipts 0 1,047,029

Resources Available: 28,575 Resources Available: 949,077 Resources Available: 0 Resources Available: 71,632 Resources Available: 0 1,049,283

Expenditures: Expenditures: Expenditures: Expenditures: Expenditures:

Professional Services 12,164 Street Improvements 949,077 Library Improvements 71,632

Building & Fixed Equip 12,620

Total Expenditures 24,784 Total Expenditures 949,077 Total Expenditures 0 Total Expenditures 71,632 Total Expenditures 0 1,045,493

Cash Balance Dec 31 3,790 Cash Balance Dec 31 0 Cash Balance Dec 31 0 Cash Balance Dec 31 0 Cash Balance Dec 31 0 3,790

3,790

**Note: These two block figures should agree.

Page No. 19

 Capital Projects - GeneraCapital Improve. - StreetCapital Improve. - SewerCapital Improve. - Grants



City of Osawatomie NON-BUDGETED FUNDS (B) 2013
(Only the actual budget year for 2011 is to be shown)

Non-Budgeted Agency Funds 1
(1) Fund Name: (2) Fund Name: (3) Fund Name: (4) Fund Name: (5) Fund Name:

Unencumbered Unencumbered Unencumbered Unencumbered Unencumbered Total
Cash Balance Jan 1 1 Cash Balance Jan 1 0 Cash Balance Jan 1 72,486 Cash Balance Jan 1 137 Cash Balance Jan 1 72,623

Receipts: Receipts: Receipts: Receipts: Receipts:

Interest 31 Reimbursed Expense 45,400 Interest on Investments 185 125 Contributions 1,863

Insurance Proceeds 27,858

Total Receipts 27,889 Total Receipts 45,400 Total Receipts 185 Total Receipts 1,863 Total Receipts 0 75,336

Resources Available: 27,889 Resources Available: 45,400 Resources Available: 72,670 Resources Available: 2,000 Resources Available: 0 147,959

Expenditures: Expenditures: Expenditures: Expenditures: Expenditures:

Refund of Unused Fund 27,889 Volunteer Stipend 42,013 Disbursements 1,862

Total Expenditures 27,889 Total Expenditures 42,013 Total Expenditures 0 Total Expenditures 1,862 Total Expenditures 0 71,764

Cash Balance Dec 31 1 Cash Balance Dec 31 3,387 Cash Balance Dec 31 72,670 Cash Balance Dec 31 138 Cash Balance Dec 31 0 76,196

76,196

**Note: These two block figures should agree.

Page No. 20

 Fire Insurance Proceeds Rural Fire Revolving Fund Cafeteria 125-HRA



City of Osawatomie NON-BUDGETED FUNDS (C) 2013
(Only the actual budget year for 2011 is to be shown)

Non-Budgeted Agency Funds 2
(1) Fund Name: (2) Fund Name: (3) Fund Name: (4) Fund Name: (5) Fund Name:

Unencumbered Unencumbered Unencumbered Unencumbered Unencumbered Total
Cash Balance Jan 1 4,661 Cash Balance Jan 1 4,034 Cash Balance Jan 1 289 Cash Balance Jan 1 303 Cash Balance Jan 1 9,287

Receipts: Receipts: Receipts: Receipts: Receipts:

Court Fees 3,000 Bonds 16,842 Forfeited Assets 0 Donations

Total Receipts 3,000 Total Receipts 16,842 Total Receipts 0 Total Receipts 0 Total Receipts 0 19,842

Resources Available: 7,661 Resources Available: 20,876 Resources Available: 289 Resources Available: 303 Resources Available: 0 29,129

Expenditures: Expenditures: Expenditures: Expenditures: Expenditures:

Disbursements 2,660 Refunds 15,218 Undercover Operations 270 Maintenance 290

Total Expenditures 2,660 Total Expenditures 15,218 Total Expenditures 270 Total Expenditures 290 Total Expenditures 0 18,437

Cash Balance Dec 31 5,001 Cash Balance Dec 31 5,659 Cash Balance Dec 31 19 Cash Balance Dec 31 13 Cash Balance Dec 31 0 10,692

10,692

**Note: These two block figures should agree.

Page No. 21

 Court ADSAP Court Bonds Forfeitures Old Stone Church



BUDGET SUMMARY
Proposed Budget 2013 Expenditures and Amount of 2012 Ad Valorem Tax establish the maximum limits of the 2013 budget.

Estimated Tax Rate is subject to change depending on the final assessed valuation.

Prior Year Actual for 2011 Current Year Estimate for 2012 Proposed Budget for 2013
Actual Actual Budget Authority Amount of 2012 Estimate

     FUND  Expenditures Tax Rate *  Expenditures Tax Rate * for Expenditures Ad Valorem Tax Tax Rate *
General 2,388,827 19.318 2,176,454 22.365 2,140,661 576,535 25.365
Bond & Interest 412,878 8.529 560,511 10.945 812,788 237,410 10.445
Library 39,561       126,000   
Industrial 15,896   11,500   41,500     
Employee Benefits 547,521 20.899 568,502 19.923 665,752 509,688 22.424
Public Safety Equipment     9,772         
Recreation Employee Benefi 12,765 0.500 12,238 0.501 2,419     
Street Improvements 135,711 111,400 129,000
Refuse 369,360 376,700 376,700
Golf Course 279,081 251,159 249,090
Special Revenue (911)     9,897
Tourism 17,531 46,250 46,250
Water 733,076 819,916 814,796
Electric 4,583,727 4,189,686 4,017,520
Sewer 838,813 844,305 836,249
Special Parks & Recreation 233 266,823 240,278
Non-Budgeted CIP Funds 1,045,493
Non-Budgeted Agency Fund  71,764
Non-Budgeted Agency Fund  18,437
    
Totals for City 11,510,674 49.246 10,245,215 53.734 10,508,900 1,323,633 58.234
Recreation 142,581 4.000 98,720 4.000 13,456   0.000
Totals Includes Recreation 11,653,255 53.246 10,343,936 57.734 10,522,356 1,323,633 58.234
Less: Transfers 1,673,163 2,257,511 1,626,500
Net Expenditure 9,980,092 8,086,425 8,895,856
Total Tax Levied 1,272,920 1,236,166 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
Assessed 
Valuation 23,905,507 23,005,714 22,729,900

Outstanding Indebtedness,
  January 1, 2010 2011 2012
G.O. Bonds 6,410,000 6,121,000 6,055,000
Revenue Bonds 0 0 0
Other 2,784,476 2,336,772 2,101,171
Lease Purchase Principal 238,970 192,452 156,849
     Total 9,433,446 8,650,224 8,313,020
  *Tax rates are expressed in mills

City Official Title: City Clerk

will meet on August 9, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. at Memorial Hall for the purpose of hearing and

Ann Elmquist

NOTICE OF BUDGET HEARING

City of Osawatomie

answering objections of taxpayers relating to the proposed use of all funds and the amount of ad valorem tax.
Detailed budget information is available at City Hall and will be available at this hearing.

The governing body of  the



 
 
 
 
  

   
 

2012-08-09 SAM - Budget Ordinance.docx   

Osawatomie City Hall 
439 Main Street  PO Box 37 

Osawatomie, KS  66064 
Phone:  (913)755-2146 

Fax:  (913)755-4164 

 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE OF MEETING: August 9, 2012 

AGENDA ITEM: 2013 Budget Ordinance 

PRESENTER:  Don Cawby, City Manager 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   K.S.A. 79-2925b requires all taxing subdivisions (except community colleges 
and school districts) to adopt a resolution or ordinance if they approve an appropriation or 
budget which is funded by revenue from property taxes that are higher than the preceding 
year.  The computation to determine the maximum dollar amount of tax levy adjusts the 
previous year’s levy by excluding the following:  new improvements to real property, increased 
personal property valuation (not including oil and gas leaseholds and mobile homes), property 
resulting from newly annexed territory, property which changed in use, and any debt service 
levy. 

This calculation is essentially the old “cap” that was placed on cities in the seventies and 
eighties, but was removed in the nineties by the Kansas Legislature.  As a compromise, the 
requirement to calculate the cap was left in place, requiring cities to adopt ordinance to take a 
second official action to adopt a levy in excess of the previous year.   

This ordinance is required to be passed and then submitted to the County Clerk and the State 
with the official budget documents.   

COUNCIL ACTION NEEDED:  Vote to adopt the ordinance. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Approve the ordinance. 



(Published in the Osawatomie Graphic, August 15, 2012) 1t 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE ATTESTING TO AN INCREASE IN TAX 
REVENUES FOR BUDGET YEAR 2013 FOR THE CITY OF 
OSAWATOMIE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Osawatomie must continue to provide services to protect the health, 

safety, and welfare of the citizens of this community; and 
 
WHEREAS, the cost of providing essential services to the citizens of this city continues to 

increase; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City again experienced a further decrease in the valuation, a drop of 

$275,814 for the 2012 valuation or a 1.2 percent decrease; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2012 valuation decrease is $1.955 million from the 2008 valuation, which is 

equal to an average annual decrease of $490,000 for the last four years.  
  
NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Governing Body of the City of Osawatomie: 
 
SECTION ONE: In accordance with state law, the City of Osawatomie has scheduled a 

public hearing and has prepared the proposed budget necessary to fund City services from January 1, 
2013 until December 31, 2013. 

 
SECTION TWO: After careful public deliberations, the Governing Body has determined that 

in order to maintain the public services which are essential for the citizens of this city, it will be 
necessary to budget property tax revenues in an amount exceeding the levy in the 2012 budget. 

 
SECTION THREE: This ordinance shall take effect after publication once in the official city 

newspaper. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the Governing Body of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas, this 

9th day of October, 2012. 
 
APPROVED AND SIGNED by the Mayor. 

 
 

______________________________ 
Philip A. Dudley, Mayor 

(SEAL) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Ann Elmquist, City Clerk 



 
 
 
 
  

   
 

2012-08-09 SAM - Street Signs.docx   

Osawatomie City Hall 
439 Main Street  PO Box 37 

Osawatomie, KS  66064 
Phone:  (913)755-2146 

Fax:  (913)755-4164 

 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE OF MEETING: August 9, 2012 

AGENDA ITEM: Street Signs  

PRESENTER:  Don Cawby, City Manager 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   Over the past years I have received several questions about street sign 
replacement, or more accurately, the lack thereof.  Of course, the old city standard for street 
signs were the four-sided concrete posts.  Not only are those posts very labor intensive and 
annual maintenance, but they do not meet safety standards for break-away signs or national 
traffic standards for uniformity and visibility.   

Several years ago, the City changed to a round metal post with street signs that were black 
letters on a white background.   These were on a post at the intersections, separate from traffic 
control signs which are placed on green channel posts which are not compatible with the 
hardware for the street markers. 

However, during the downtown streetscape project, BG Consultants replaced our street sign 
image with a green sign with white letters, on top of the square stop sign posts. The indicated 
to Bret Glendenning that this was the new sign standard.  As I understand, both the manager, 
staff and members of the council did not like the change because (a) a change would require 
considerable expense to change the rest of the town for uniformity, and (b) most people did 
not like the placement of the street markers on top of the stop signs. 

The U.S. Department of Transportation originally issued requirements in the mid-2000s which 
would need to be met by all levels of government, including municipalities.  Late last year the 
Obama administration backed off the dates and may of the requirements, to pretty much let us 
do what we want.  So some of the issues that existed when our projects were being designed 
have now been scrapped.  Three of the more expensive changes were: 

 

 



2012-08-09 SAM - Street Signs.docx  Page 2 

1. The size of the letters on street signs from the current 4 inches to 6 inches on all 
roads with speed limits over 25 miles per hour. The target date for this was to be 
completed January 2012. 

2. Install signs with new reflective letters more visible at night by January 2018. 

3. And whenever street name signs are changed for any reason, they can no longer 
be in ALL CAPS. 

Because of the new rules and the cost, staff put sign replacement on hold until we could discuss 
and decide the plan of action to take.  The only signs that have been replaced are from what 
stock we already had. 

Our options at this time are: 

1. Continue with the white signs (or any other color scheme) on separate posts, or  
2. Implement the new design standard by placing street signs on top of traffic control 

signs, which would mean lack of uniformity for some time.   

COUNCIL ACTION NEEDED:  Set the direction for the replacement of signs. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Stay with the white signs and direct staff to begin 
installing signs at unmarked intersections as needed and budget allows. 

 



 
 
 
 
  

   
 

2012-08-09 Update Memo.doc  1  

Osawatomie City Hall 
439 Main Street  PO Box 37 

Osawatomie, KS  66064 
Phone:  (913)755-2146 

Fax:  (913)755-4164 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Don Cawby, City Manager 

Re: Projects & Issues Update 

Date: August 9, 2012 

Projects 

Brown & Pacific.  Steve and I checked the final work project this morning and we are signing off on it.  
We have received a maintenance warranty with a bond, so we should be wrapping the project at the 
next Council meeting. 

Issues 

Planning & Zoning Updates.  For the next meeting, Scott Michie, our on-call planner, will walk through 
his proposal for managing the updates to planning and zoning regulations.  The cost is around $13,000 
and given the circumstances, I am recommending we assign him the work based upon his status as our 
on-call planner.  This would be no different than work provided by BG Consulting for design work.  After 
considerable review, I think his proposal is very reasonable and believe his ideas for a finished product 
will make administering the process much simpler and efficient. 

Sunday Sales.  The Sunday Sales petition was not upheld (defeated 454-236), which means our 
ordinance, as passed in April, will go into effect as of the certification of the votes on August 15.  I will 
work with our staff to get the statutory requirements in the hands of all the vendors in our community. 

Ward Realignment.  I am planning to discuss ward realignment at the first meeting in September.  After 
the budget is complete, I plan to bring forward the ward realignment issue so that in can be passed and 
in effect before the end of the year. 

Criminal Defense.  I am in the process of developing an RFP for which will establish one contract 
attorney that will provide court-appointed criminal defense for municipal court.  This was a 
recommendation from the judge, prosecutor and police department in our discussions earlier this year 
to control costs.  The RFP will not only ask for a flat monthly rate to provide the services, but will also 
require the attorney(s) to provide references and examples of organization and responsiveness in the 
performance of the required duties. 

Mutual Aid.  KMEA has joined with KMU to partner in the Kansas Mutual Aid Program.  The program is 
designed for public and private utilities to assist each other in times of emergency.  At the next meeting 
we will review this program and I will ask you to consider Osawatomie becoming a partner. 



2012-08-09 Update Memo.doc  2  

Recognition 

All City Staff.  All of the City Staff pitched in to get the golf course and lake cleaned up after the storm 
the Sunday before last. 

Upcoming Meetings/Dates 

August 23 City Council Meeting 

August 28 Intergovernmental Meeting - Osawatomie 

August 29 Planning & Zoning 

Sept 13  City Council Meeting 

Sept 27  City Council Meeting 

Manager’s Out-of-town Schedule 

Sept 16  Main Street Quarterly Training in Sterling. 

Sept 4-8 Tentative – 3CMA Annual Conference 


	AGENDA
	4. CONSENT AGENDA
	4.A.a.July 12  Council Minutes
	4.A.b. July 19 & 26 Council Minutes 
	4.C.a  Approp Ord 12-13 
	4.C.b  Approp Ord 12-14 

	8. NEW BUSINESS 
	8.A. Appointments 
	8.B.Proclamation - Black Ties 
	8.C.Proclamation - Ruth Wrench 
	8.D. Chamber of Commerce Annual Report 
	8.D.a.Staff Memo 
	8.D.b.Oz Chamber 2012 Annual Report 

	8.E. 2012 Audit Agreement
	8.E.a.Staff Memo 
	8.E.b.2012 Audit Engagement Letter with JGP 

	8.F. GAAP Waiver
	8.F.a.Staff Memo 
	8.F.b.GAAP Waiver Resolution 

	8.G. 2013 Proposed Budget
	8.G.a.Staff Memo 
	8.G.b. 2013 State Forms 
	cert
	computation
	mvalloc
	transfers
	debt
	lpform
	general
	GenDetail
	DebtService
	Library-Rec
	Ind-EBF
	PS Equip-REBF
	St Imp-Refuse
	Golf-911
	Tourism
	Water
	Elec
	Sewer
	SP&R
	CIP Funds
	Agency Funds1
	Agency Funds2
	summ


	8.H. 2013 Budget Ordinance 
	8.H.a.Staff Memo 

	8.I. Street Signs
	8.I.a  Staff Memo 


	11. City Manager's Report

